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Auditors’ report to the MeMbers
We have audited the annexed balance sheet of shakarganj Mills Limited as at september 30, 2010 and the related profit and 
loss account, statement of comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity and cash flow statement together with the 
notes forming part thereof, for the year then ended and we state that we have obtained all the information and explanations 
which, to the best of our knowledge and belief, were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

it is the responsibility of the company’s management to establish and maintain a system of internal control, and prepare 
and present the above said statements in conformity with the approved accounting standards and the requirements of the 
Companies ordinance, 1984. our responsibility is to express an opinion on these statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the auditing standards as applicable in pakistan. these standards require that we 
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the above said statements are free of any material 
misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the above said 
statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting policies and significant estimates made by management, as well 
as, evaluating the overall presentation of the above said statements. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for 
our opinion and, after due verification, we report that:

(a) in our opinion, proper books of account have been kept by the company as required by the Companies ordinance, 1984;

(b) in our opinion:

 (i)  the balance sheet and profit and loss account together with the notes thereon have been drawn up in conformity 
with the Companies ordinance, 1984, and are in agreement with the books of account and are further in 
accordance with accounting policies consistently applied except for the changes in accounting policies as stated 
in notes 2.2.1 and 4.8 to the annexed financial statements with which we concur;

 (ii)  the expenditure incurred during the year was for the purpose of the company’s business; and

 (iii)  the business conducted, investments made and the expenditure incurred during the year were in accordance 
with the objects of the company;

(c)  in our opinion, and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the balance sheet, profit and 
loss account, statement of comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity and cash flow statement together with the 
notes forming part thereof conform with approved accounting standards as applicable in pakistan, and, give the information 
required by the Companies ordinance, 1984, in the manner so required and respectively give a true and fair view of the state 
of the company’s affairs as at september 30, 2010 and of the loss, total comprehensive loss, changes in equity and its cash 
flows for the year then ended; and

(d) in our opinion zakat deductible at source under the Zakat and ushr ordinance, 1980 (XViii of 1980), was deducted by the 
company and deposited in the Central Zakat Fund established under section 7 of that ordinance.

(e) Without qualifying our opinion, we draw attention to note 1.2 to the financial statements which indicates the company 
could not meet its obligations in respect of principal and markup repayments on borrowings from financial institutions. the 
company has incurred net loss of rs 879.727 million during the year, its current liabilities have exceeded its current assets by 
rs 3,246 million and the equity has been fully eroded.

these conditions along with other matters as set forth in note 1.2 indicate the existence of material uncertainty which may cast doubt 
about the company’s ability to continue as a going concern.

these financial statements do not include any adjustments relating to the realisation of the company’s assets and liquidation of any 
liabilities that may be necessary should the company be unable to continue as a going concern.
 
 

Chartered Accountants

Lahore. 
January 06, 2011.

Name of engagement partner: Muhammad Masood
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bALANCe sheet 
As at september 30, 2010

 Note 2010 2009
  (Rupees in thousand)
   restated
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES   
   
SHARE CAPITAL AND RESERVES   
   
Authorized capital   
80,000,000 (2009: 80,000,000)    
  ordinary shares of rs 10 each   800,000   800,000 
50,000,000 (2009: 50,000,000)    
  preference shares of rs 10 each   500,000   500,000
 
   1,300,000   1,300,000 
   
issued, subscribed and paid up capital   
69,523,798 (2009: 69,523,798)   
  ordinary shares of rs 10 each 5   695,238   695,238 
reserves   969,241   950,008 
Accumulated loss   (2,870,871)  (1,991,163)

   (1,206,392)  (345,917)
SURPLUS ON REVALUATION OF PROPERTY,   
   PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 6   1,699,425   1,699,444 
   
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES   
   
Long term finances 7   1,137,926   1,283,446 
Liabilities against assets subject to finance lease 8   58,577   153,775 
employees’ retirement benefits 9   9,485   12,314 
deferred income 10   2,307   5,312
 
   1,208,295   1,454,847 
CURRENT LIABILITIES   
   
Current portion of long term liabilities 11   1,791,441   1,763,566 
short term borrowings - secured 12   2,845,639   4,054,535 
trade and other payables 13   1,117,523   936,374 
Accrued finance cost 14   812,863   610,572 

   6,567,466   7,365,047 
CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS 15 
  
   8,268,794   10,173,421
 
   
the annexed notes 1 to 49 form an integral part of these financial statements.   
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 Note 2010 2009
  (Rupees in thousand) 
   restated
ASSETS   
   
NON-CURRENT ASSETS   
   
property, plant and equipment 16  4,162,523   6,385,995 
intangible assets 17  1,249   1,001 
Assets subject to finance lease 18  221,003   535,630 
Capital work-in-progress 19  88,462   350,667 
biological assets 20  8,479   10,781 
investments - related parties 21  415,682   553,296 
Long term loans, advances, deposits   
   and prepayments 22  50,107   99,784 
deferred taxation 23  -   -
 
   4,947,505   7,937,154 
   
   
   
   
   
   
CURRENT ASSETS   
   
biological assets 20  15,143   25,708 
stores, spares and loose tools 24  91,246   112,774 
stock-in-trade 25  131,989   1,022,608 
trade debts 26  14,494   13,696 
investments 27  143,976   260,322 
Loans, advances, deposits, prepayments   
   and other receivables 28  227,087   140,929 
Cash and bank balances 29  33,514   24,508
 
   657,449   1,600,545 
   
Non-current assets held for sale 30  2,663,840   635,722 

   3,321,289   2,236,267 
 
  

   8,268,794   10,173,421 

 Chief Executive Chairman
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proFit ANd Loss ACCouNt 
For the year ended september 30, 2010

 Note 2010 2009
  (Rupees in thousand) 
   restated

Continuing operations:   

   
sales 31   7,745,611   5,101,667 
Cost of sales 32   (7,003,746)  (4,783,640)
   
Gross profit   741,865   318,027 
   
Administrative expenses 33   (201,182)  (221,243)
distribution and selling costs 34   (93,100)  (117,110)
other operating expenses 35   (53,397)  (588,183)
other operating income 36   83,165   86,202 
   
Profit/(loss)from operations   477,351   (522,307)
   
Finance cost 37   (989,230)  (1,259,768)
share of loss from associates 21.1   (22,229)  (59,835)
   
Loss before taxation   (534,108)  (1,841,910)
   
taxation   
   
- Company 38  (55,860)  (17,010)
- Associates 21.1  (20,587)  (13,150)

   (76,447)  (30,160)
   
Loss for the year from continuing operations   (610,555)  (1,872,070)
   
Discontinued operations:   
   
Loss for the year from discontinued operations 30   (269,172)  (85,751)
   
Loss for the year    (879,727)  (1,957,821)
   
Loss per share from continuing operations   
   
 - basic    rupees 39   (8.78)  (26.93)
 - diluted     rupees 39   (8.78)  (26.93)
   
Loss per share from discontinued operations   
   
 - basic      rupees 39   (3.87)  (1.23)
 - diluted      rupees 39   (3.87)  (1.23)
   
   
the annexed notes 1 to 49 form an integral part of these financial statements.   

 Chief Executive Chairman
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stAteMeNt oF CoMpreheNsiVe iNCoMe 
For the year ended september 30, 2010

  2010 2009
  (Rupees in thousand) 
   restated

Loss after taxation   (879,727)  (1,957,821)
   
Other Comprehensive income:   
   
Fair value loss on ‘Available for sale’  investments   (89,780)  (412,087)
Loss during the year transferred to profit and loss    
account on derecognition of shares   (9,347)  (930)
impairment loss transferred to profit and loss account   115,971   298,504 
   
   16,844   (114,513)
   
share of other comprehensive income/(loss) of associates   2,389   (8,064)
   
transfer from surplus on revaluation of property, plant and equipment   
on account of    
- incremental depreciation - net of tax   19   21 
- disposal of land - net of tax   -     40,872 
   
   19   40,893 
   
Other comrehensive income/(loss) for the year   19,252   (81,684)
   

Total comprehensive loss for the year   (860,475)  (2,039,505)
   
   
the annexed notes 1 to 49 form an integral part of these financial statements.

 Chief Executive Chairman
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CAsh FLoW stAteMeNt
For the year ended september 30, 2010
 Note 2010 2009
  (Rupees in thousand)
   restated
 
Cash flows from operating activities   
   
Cash generated from/(used) in operations 40   1,665,692   1,051,082 
Finance cost paid   (786,939)  (988,643)
taxes paid   (18,247)  (24,067)
employees’ retirement benefits paid   (11,910)  (11,567)
Net decrease in long term deposits   49,677   18,271 
transferred from Non-current assets held for sale   -     36 
   
Net cash generated from/(used in) operating activities   898,273   45,112 
   
Cash flows from investing activities   
   
Fixed capital expenditure   (46,550)  (289,438)
investment made   -   (2,435)
proceeds from sale of investments in associates   3,063   - 
proceeds from sale of investments - others   197,918   35,403 
proceeds from sale of investments - held for sale   163,617   - 
dividends received   14,912   11,873 
income from bank deposits received   13,080   7,245 
proceeds from non-current assets held for sale   150,000   - 
proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment   36,435   124,162 
   
Net cash generated from investing activities   532,475   (113,190)
   
Cash flows from financing activities   
   
Long term finances - net   (113,669)  (103,261)
Net decrease in short term borrowings - secured   (1,208,896)  (56,305)
Finance lease liabilities - net   (99,174)  (94,238)
dividends paid   (3)  (4)
   
Net cash used in financing activities   (1,421,742)  (253,808)
   
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents   9,006   (321,886)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year   24,508   346,394
 
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 29   33,514   24,508 
   
the annexed notes 1 to 49 form an integral part of these financial statements.

 Chief Executive Chairman
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Notes to the FiNANCiAL stAteMeNts
For the year ended september 30, 2010

1. LEGAL STATUS AND NATURE OF  BUSINESS 
  
 the company is incorporated in pakistan and is listed on Karachi, Lahore and islamabad stock exchanges. 

it is principally engaged in growing of sugar cane; manufacture, purchase and sale of sugar, ethanol, 
building material, yarn and engaged in generation and sale of electricity. the company has its principal 
manufacturing facilities at Jhang and two satellite manufacturing facilities at bhone and dargai shah. the 
registered office of the company is situated in Lahore.

 
1.2 Going concern assumption
 
 the company is facing liquidity crunch for a few years. it has incurred a loss of rs 860.48 million during the 

year (including impairment loss on investments of rs 115 million), the current liabilities have exceeded the 
current assets by rs 3,246 million, the equity has been eroded and stands at negative rs 1,078 million. the 
Company has not been able to meet its obligations under various agreements for long term loans, lease 
financing and  short term running finances. 

 
 in February 2010, the Company entered into agreements for a bridge finance facility of rs 2,466 million and 

short term running finance facility of rs 2,980 million from a consortium of its existing lenders providing 
short term and long term loans (except leasing companies and National bank of pakistan). 

 
 the bridge finance facility is repayable by June 2011 through sale of certain non-current assets of the 

Company and is secured against:

 - a pari passu charge over all present and future fixed assets of the company (excluding land and 
building);

 - first mortgage/charge over immovable property of the company;
 - personal guarantees of Mr. Anjum saleem and Mr. Ahsan saleem;
 - pledge of shares in shakarganj Food products Limited; and
 - lien on a special reserve account, where the proceeds from the sale of assets and a unit, if required, of 

the company will be deposited.

 Additonally, the company has agreed, through the above bridge finance agreement, that it shall procure 
shakarganj energy (pvt) Limited (seL) to provide and irrecoverable and unconditional commitment to 
purchase the dargai shah energy plant at an aggregate value of rs 300 million. the subject commitment 
was to be secured against pledge/lien of marketable securities valuing rs 573 million own by Crescent steel 
and Allied products Limited (CsApL). An associated company in favour of the agent of the consortium. 

 CsApL did not pledge the above referred marketable securities. While seL did not provide an irrecoverable 
and unconditional commitments to purchase the above referred asset, however, base on an independent 
valuation, seL agreed to purchase the dargai shah power plant at rs 300 million, against which partial 
payment of rs 150 million has been made during the year. 

 
 As  per the terms of the agreement, the bridge finance was to be repaid through the sale of assets of the 

company in installments, and further injection of equity of rs 300 million by June 2011. Following is the detail 
of the assets (at their then carrying value) to be disposed of by the company to retire the bridge loan.

  
 Assets   (Rupees in
     thousands)
  
 Agricultural Land    906,558 
 Complete disposal of investment in shares of : 
  -   safeway Mutual Fund Limited    270,240 
  -   Asian stocks Fund Limited    215,790 
 partial disposal of investment in shares of shakarganj Foods products Limited   200,000 
 plant and machinery at Mian Muhammad sugar Mill    194,787 
 sML power division - dargai shah    148,444 
 residential and commercial plots    181,000 
 turbines    25,000 
      2,141,819 
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 out of the above the Company has been able to partially offload investments in Asian safeway Funds 
Limited and safeway Mutual Fund Limited and sold off the dargai shah power division. the restructured 
short term running finance is secured against pledge of refined sugar at a margin. Additionally, the lenders 
will create a lien on a ‘collection account’ where proceeds from realization of receivables will be deposited. 

  
 the accrued markup is payable immediately. 
  
 however, neither the bridge finance facility nor the consortium cash finance could become operative 

during the year due to delays in obtaining No-objection certificate from the National bank of pakistan for 
creation of pari passu charge on assets against the above new facilities. Furthermore, the Company was 
also unable to liquidate all of the abovementioned assets as per the time lines identified in the bridge loan 
agreement.  

  
 the above conditions raises significant doubts on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. 

however, the management is confident of the Company’s ability to continue on a going concern based 
on its concerted effort to re-profile borrowings, sale of the non-current assets and utilization of improved 
liquidity in higher operational levels of cane crushing and ethanol manufacturing.  

  
 the steps taken by management up till now and planned in future are as follows: 
  
 While the bridge loan facility is not operative till the year end, however, the Company is confident that it will 

be able to obtain extension in the bridge loan from the consortium and consequently will be able to retire 
its over due loan installments and short term finances availed against now defunct facilities.  

  
 during  the current year the Company has disposed off substantial holding in its subsidiary companies, Asian 

stock Fund Limited, safeway mutual Fund Limited along with the entire holding in safeway Fund Limited, 
the investment advisory company for the mutual funds. the Company has also successfully offloaded its 
‘under-construction’ power division in dargai shah at a profit. Furthermore, the Company expecting delays 
in liquidation of the identified assets, has been able to, subsequently to the year end, sell off the entire 
assets of the satellite division in dargai shah at an aggregate consideration of rs 1,350 million subject to 
completion of certain legal formalities. 

  
 the Company has successfully rescheduled long term finances aggregating to rs 1,198 million with 

respective lenders during the year and expects relaxation in payment terms from other key lenders also. 
  
 these financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis based on the management’s 

expectation that: 
 - the bridge loan will be disbursed and the dates for sale of assets extended by the consortium;
 - the Company will successfully dispose off the identified assets at a profit to their carrying values;
 - the lenders for long term loans will provide relief in payment terms; and
  the company will be able to utilize the liquidity generated through above restructuring/rescheduling 

to increase its operations.
  
 these financial statements consequently, do not include any adjustments relating to the realization of its 

assets and liquidation of any liabilities that might be necessary should the company be unable to continue 
as a going concern. 

  
2. BASIS OF PREPARATION
  
2.1 these financial statements have been prepared in accordance with approved accounting standards as 

applicable in pakistan. Approved accounting standards comprise of such international Financial reporting 
standards (iFrs) issued by the international Accounting standards board as are notified under the 
Companies ordinance, 1984, provisions of and directives issued under the Companies ordinance , 1984. in 
case requirements differ, the provisions or directives of the Companies ordinance, 1984 shall prevail. 
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2.2 Standards, Interpretations and amendments to published approved accounting standards
  
 the following amendments to existing standards have been published that are applicable to the company’s 

financial statements covering annual periods, beginning on or after the following dates: 
  
2.2.1 Amendments to published standards effective in current year
  
 -  iAs 1 (revised), ‘presentation of financial statements’ is effective from January 1, 2009. the revised 

standard prohibits the presentation of items of income and expenses (that is, ‘non-owner changes 
in equity’) in the statement of changes in equity, requiring ‘non-owner changes in equity’ to be 
presented separately from owner changes in equity in a statement of comprehensive income. As a 
result the company shows all owner related changes in equity in statement of changes in equity, 
whereas all non-owner changes in equity are presented in other comprehensive income. Comparative 
information is required to be re-presented so that it is in conformity with the revised standard. 

  
  the Company has preferred to present two statements; a profit and loss account (income statement) 

and a second statement beginning with profit or loss and display components of other comprehensive 
income (statement of comprehensive income). Comparative information has also been re-presented 
so it is in conformity with the revised standard. As this change only impacts presentation aspects, 
there is no impact on profit for the year. 

  
 -  iAs 23 (amendment), ‘borrowing costs’ is effective from January 1, 2009. the amendment requires an 

entity to capitalize borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production 
of a qualifying asset as part of the cost of that asset. the option of immediately expensing those 
borrowing costs is removed. the Company’s current accounting policy is in compliance with this 
amendment, and therefore there is no impact on the Company’s financial statements. 

  
 -  iFrs 7, ‘Financial instruments: disclosures’, is effective from January 1, 2009. iFrs 7 introduces new 

disclosures relating to financial instruments and does not have any impact on the classification 
and measurement of the Company’s financial instruments. the application of iFrs 7 has resulted in 
additional disclosures in the Company’s financial statements, however, there is no impact on loss for 
the year. 

  
 -  iFrs 3 (revised), ‘business combinations’, and consequential amendments to iAs 27, ‘Consolidated 

and separate financial statements’, iAs 28, ‘investments in associates’, and iAs 31, ‘interests in joint 
ventures’, are effective prospectively to business combinations for which the acquisition date is on 
or after the beginning of the first annual reporting period beginning on or after 1 July 2009. the 
Company is not preparing consolidated financial statements therefore there is no impact of this in the 
financial statements. 

  
 -  iAs 27 (revised), ‘Consolidated and separate financial statements’, is effective from July 1, 2009. the 

revised standard requires the effects of all transactions with non-controlling interests to be recorded 
in equity if there is no change in control and these transactions will no longer result in goodwill or 
gains and losses. the standard also specifies the accounting when control is lost. Any remaining 
interest in the entity is re-measured to fair value, and a gain or loss is recognized in income statement. 
the Company is not preparing consolidated financial statements therefore there is no impact of this 
in the financial statements. 

  
  iFrs 8, ‘operating segments’ - effective october 01, 2009. this standard requires disclosure of 

information about the company’s operating segments based on the Company’s internal reporting 
structure and replaces the requirement to determine primary (business) and secondary (geographical) 
reporting segments of the company. Adoption of this standard did not have any effect on the financial 
position or performance of the company. Farms division, which was previously considered a part of 
the sugar segment, is now classifiable as a separate segment under iFrs 8. segment information is 
given in note 44. 
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2.2.2 Amendments to published standards not yet effective
  
 the following amendments and interpretations to existing standards have been published and are 

mandatory for the Company’s accounting periods beginning on or after their respective effective dates:  
  
 -  iAs 1 (amendment), ‘presentation of financial statements’. the amendment is part of the iAsb’s 

annual improvements project published in April 2009. the amendment provides clarification that the 
potential settlement of a liability by the issue of equity is not relevant to its classification as current or 
non current. by amending the definition of current liability, the amendment permits a liability to be 
classified as non-current (provided that the entity has an unconditional right to defer settlement by 
transfer of cash or other assets for at least 12 months after the accounting period) notwithstanding 
the fact that the entity could be required by the counterparty to settle in shares at any time. the 
Company will apply iAs 1 (amendment) from January 1, 2010. it is not expected to have a material 
impact on the Company’s financial statements. 

  
 -  iAs 38 (amendment), ‘intangible assets’. the amendment is part of the iAsb’s annual improvements  

project  published  in  April 2009  and the Company will apply iAs 38 (amendment) from the  date  
iFrs 3 (revised)  is  adopted.  the  amendment  clarifies guidance in measuring the fair value  of  an  
intangible  asset  acquired  in  a  business combination and it permits the grouping of intangible assets 
as a single asset if each asset has similar useful economic lives. the amendment will not result in any 
significant impact on the Company’s financial statements. 

  
 -  iAs 39 (amendment); ‘Cash flow hedge accounting’. this amendment provides clarification when  to  

recognize  gains  or  losses  on  hedging  instruments  as  a  reclassification adjustments in a cash flow 
hedge of a forecast transaction that results subsequently in the recognition of a financial instrument. 
the amendment clarifies that gains or losses should be reclassified from equity to income statement 
in the period in which the hedged forecast cash flow affects income statement. the Company will 
apply iAs 39 (Amendment) from January 1, 2010. it is not expected to have any significant impact on 
the Company’s financial statements. 

  
 -  iFrs 3 (revised),  ‘business  combinations’ is effective from July 1, 2009. the revised standard continues 

to apply the acquisition method to business combinations, with some significant changes. For 
example, all payments to purchase a business are to be recorded at fair value at the  acquisition  date,  
with  contingent  payments  classified  as  debt subsequently  re-measured  through  the  income  
statement.  there  is  a  choice  on  an acquisition-by-acquisition basis to measure the non-controlling 
interest in the acquiree at fair  vale  or  at  the  non-controlling  interest’s  proportionate  share  of  the  
acquiree’s  net assets. All acquisition-related costs should be expensed. the Company will apply iFrs 
3 (revised) prospectively to all business combinations from January 1, 2010. it is not expected to have 
a material impact on the Company’s financial statements. 

  
 -  iFrs 5 (amendment), ‘Measurement of non-current assets (or disposal groups) classified as held-for-

sale’.  the  amendment is part of the iAsb’s annual improvements project published in April 2009. 
the amendment provides clarification that iFrs 5 specifies the disclosures required in respect of 
non-current assets (or disposal groups) classified as held for sale or discontinued operations. it also 
clarifies that the general requirement of iAs 1 still apply, particularly paragraph 15 (to achieve a fair 
presentation) and paragraph 125 (sources of estimation uncertainty) of iAs 1. the Company will 
apply iFrs 5 (amendment) from January 1, 2010. it is not expected to have a material impact on the 
Company’s financial statements. 

  
 there are a number of minor amendments in other iFrs and iAs which are part of annual improvement 

project published in April 2009 (not addressed above). these amendments are unlikely to have any impact 
on the Company’s financial statements and therefore have not been analyzed in detail.  
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2.2.3 Standards and interpretations to existing standards that are not applicable to the company and not 
yet effective 

  
  Standards or Interpretation   Effective date (accounting
     periods beginning on or after)
  
 iFrs 2 - share based payments   January 01, 2010
 iFriC 16 - hedge of net investment in a foreign operation   July 01, 2009
 iFriC 17 - distribution of non-cash assets to owners   July 01, 2009
 iFriC 18 - transfers of Assets from Customers   July 01, 2009
   
3. BASIS OF MEASUREMENT
  
3.1 these financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention except for revaluation 

of certain employees’ retirement benefits at present value as referred to in note 4.2 and revaluation of 
certain property, plant and equipment, biological assets, certain financial instruments and certain assets 
held for disposal at fair values as referred to in notes 4.3, 4.6, 4.8 and 4.15 respectively. 

  
3.2 the Company’s significant accounting policies are stated in note 4. Not all of these significant policies 

require the management to make difficult, subjective or complex judgments or estimates. the following 
is intended to provide an understanding of the policies the management considers critical because of 
their complexity, judgment of estimation involved in their application and their impact on these financial 
statements. estimates and judgments are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience, 
including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. these 
judgments involve assumptions or estimates in respect of future events and the actual results may differ 
from these estimates. the areas involving a higher degree of judgments or complexity or areas where 
assumptions and estimates are significant to the financial statements are as follows: 

  
 a)       Retirement benefits 
  
  i) there is an approved defined contribution provident fund for all employees. equal monthly 

contributions are made by the employer and the employee to the fund in accordance with the 
fund rules. interest is payable to the fund on the balances utilized @ 7-8% per annum, which is 
charged to profit and loss account.

  ii)  the company uses the valuation performed by an independent actuary as the present value of its 
retirement benefit obligations. the valuation is based on assumptions as mentioned in note 4.2

 b)       Recoverable amount of property, plant and equipment 
  
  the company basis its valuation of operating assets suspect to impairment upon valuation performed 

by an independent valuation expert. the valuation is based on fair value less costs to sell as mentioned 
in note 4.3 

  
 c)       Biological assets 
  
  the company basis its valuation upon yield assessment performed by an independent agricultural 

expert and computes fair value less estimated point of sales cost to arrive at its valuation. the fair 
value less estimated point of sales cost is based on factors mentioned in note 4.6 

  
4. Significant accounting policies
  
 the significant accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these financial statements are set out 

below. these policies have been consistently applied to all years presented, unless otherwise stated. 
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4.1 Taxation
  
 Current 
  
 provision of current tax is based on the taxable income for the year determined in accordance with the 

prevailing law for taxation of income. the charge for current tax is calculated using prevailing tax rates or 
tax rates expected to apply to the profit for the year if enacted. the charge for current tax also includes 
adjustments, where considered necessary, to provision for tax made in previous years arising from 
assessments framed during the year for such years. 

  
 Deferred  
  
 deferred tax is accounted for using the balance sheet liability method in respect of all temporary differences 

arising from differences between the carrying amount of assets and liabilities in the financial statements 
and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of the taxable profit.  

  
 deferred tax liabilities are generally recognized for all taxable temporary differences and deferred tax 

assets are recognized to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available against which the 
deductible temporary differences, unused tax losses and tax credits can be utilized. 

  
 deferred tax is calculated at the rates that are expected to apply to the period when the differences reverse 

based on tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date. deferred tax 
is charged or credited in the income statement, except in the case of items credited or charged to equity in 
which case it is included in equity. 

  
4.2 Employees’ retirement benefits
  
 4.2.1 Defined benefit plans
  
  the main feature of the schemes operated by the company for its employees of sugar and allied 

divisions are as follows: 
  
  All permanent employees who are in the management cadre of the company participate in an approved 

funded defined benefit pension plan. in addition, there is an approved funded defined benefit gratuity 
scheme for all permanent employees, who are in the management cadre of the company subject to a 
minimum qualifying period of service according to the terms of employment. Monthly contributions 
are made to these funds on the basis of actuarial recommendation at the rate of  20% per annum of 
basic salary for pension and 8.33% per annum of basic salary for gratuity. Actuarial valuation for the 
schemes was carried out as at september 30, 2010. 

  
  Actual returns on plan assets during the year were rs 3.115 million and rs 1.895 million for pension 

and gratuity funds respectively. the actual returns on plan assets represent the difference between 
the fair value of plan assets at the beginning of the year and as at the end of the year after adjustments 
for contributions made by the company as reduced by benefits paid during the year. 

  
  the future contribution rates of these plans include allowances for deficit and surplus. projected unit 

credit method using the following significant assumptions, is used for valuation of these schemes:  
  
  discount rate 12.5% per annum 
  expected increase in eligible pay 11.5% per annum
  expected rate of return on plan assets 14.0% per annum
  expected mortality rate eFu 61-66 mortality table adjusted for
   company’s experience
  expected withdrawal and early retirement rate based on experience 
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  plan assets include long term Government bonds, term finance certificates of financial institutions; 
preference shares and ordinary shares of listed and unlisted companies and term deposits with banks. 
return on Government bonds and debt is at fixed rates. 

  
  the company is expected to contribute 8.129 million and 3.903 million to the pension and gratuity 

funds respectively in the next year ending september 30, 2011. 
  
  experience gains and losses arising during the year are recognized immediately in accordance with 

the provisions of iAs 19. 
  
  the company policy with regard to actuarial gains/losses follows minimum recommended approach 

under iAs 19 (revised 2000). 
  
 4.2.2 Defined contribution plan
  
  there is an approved funded contributory provident fund for all permanent employees. equal monthly 

contributions are made by the company and employees to the fund in accordance with the fund 
rules. 

  
  interest at 7-8% per annum is payable to the fund on the balances utilized by the company which is 

charged to profit.
 
  retirement benefits are payable to staff on completion of prescribed qualifying period of service 

under these schemes. 
  
4.3 Property, plant and equipment
  
 Freehold land, buildings and plant and machinery were revalued as at september 30, 1979 by an 

independent valuer as of that date. Land was revalued again as at september 30, 2007, september 30, 
2008 and september 30, 2009 by an independent valuer by reference to its current market price. these are 
shown at revalued figures less accumulated depreciation and any identified impairment loss. Additions 
subsequent to that date are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and any identified impairment 
loss. All other property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and any 
identified impairment loss. Costs in relation to certain property, plant and equipment comprises of historical 
cost, revalued amount and borrowing costs referred to in note 4.21. 

  
 increases in the carrying amount arising on revaluation of property, plant and equipment are credited to 

surplus on revaluation of property, plant and equipment. decreases that offset previous increases of the 
same assets are charged against this surplus, all other decreases are charged to income. each year the 
difference between depreciation based on revalued carrying amount of the asset (the depreciation charged 
to the income) and depreciation based on the assets’ original cost is transferred from surplus on revaluation 
of property, plant and equipment to unappropriated profit. All transfers to/from surplus on revaluation of 
property, plant and equipment are net of applicable deferred taxation. 

  
 depreciation on all property, plant and equipment, except land is charged to profit on the reducing balance 

method so as to write off the cost of an asset over its estimated useful life at the annual rates given in note 
16 after taking into account the impact of their residual values, if considered significant. 

  
 the assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, at each financial year end, and adjusted if impact on 

depreciation is significant. the company’s estimate of the residual value of its property, plant and equipment 
as at september 30, 2010 has not required any adjustment as its impact is considered insignificant. 

  
 depreciation on additions to property, plant and equipment is charged from the month in which the asset 

is acquired or capitalized, while no depreciation is charged for the month in which the asset is disposed 
off. 
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 the company assesses at each balance sheet date whether there is any indication that property, plant and 
equipment may be impaired. if such indication exists, the carrying amount of such assets are reviewed to 
asses whether they are recorded in excess of their recoverable amount. Where carrying values exceed the 
respective recoverable amount, assets are written down to their recoverable amounts and the resulting 
impairment is recognized in income currently. the recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value 
less cost to sell and value in use. Where an impairment loss is recognized, the depreciation charge is adjusted 
in the future periods to allocate the asset’s revised carrying amount over its estimated useful life. 

  
 subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognized as a separate asset, as 

appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to 
the company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. All other repair and maintenance costs are 
charged to income during the period in which they are incurred.  

  
 the gain or loss on disposal or retirement of an asset represented by the difference between the sale 

proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset is recognized as an income or expense.  
  
4.4 Intangible assets
  
 intangible assets represent the cost of computer software acquired and are stated at cost less accumulated 

amortization and any identified impairment loss. 
  
 Amortization is charged to income on the straight line basis so as to write off the cost of an asset over its 

estimated useful life. Amortization on additions is charged from the month in which an asset is acquired or 
capitalized while no amortization is charged for the month in which the asset is disposed off. Amortization 
is being charged as specified in note 17. 

  
 the company assesses at each balance sheet date whether there is any indication that intangible assets 

may be impaired. if such indication exists, the carrying amount of such assets are reviewed to asses whether 
they are recorded in excess of their recoverable amount. Where carrying values exceed the respective 
recoverable amount, assets are written down to their recoverable amounts and the resulting impairment is 
recognized in income currently. the recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less cost to sell 
and value in use. Where an impairment loss is recognized, the amortization charge is adjusted in the future 
periods to allocate the asset’s revised carrying amount over its estimated useful life. 

  
4.5 Capital work-in-progress
  
 Capital work-in-progress is stated at cost less any identified impairment loss. 
  
4.6 Biological assets 
  
 biological assets comprise of standing crops and livestock. these are stated at fair value less estimated 

point-of-sale costs, with any resultant gain or loss recognized in the profit and loss account. the fair value of 
standing crops is based on the support price fixed by the Government and other factors such as estimated 
crop yield and area under cultivation. the fair value of livestock is estimated on the basis of market prices of 
livestock of similar age, breed and genetic merit. point-of-sale costs include all costs that are necessary to 
sell the assets, excluding costs necessary to get the assets to the market. 

  
4.7 Leases
  
 the company is the lessee: 
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 4.7.1 Finance leases
  
  Leases where the company has substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership are classified as 

finance leases. Assets subject to finance lease are initially recognized at lower of present value of 
minimum lease payments under the lease arrangements and the fair value of assets. subsequently 
these assets are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and any identified impairment loss. 

  
  each lease payment is allocated between the liability and finance cost so as to achieve a constant 

rate on the balance outstanding. the interest element of the rental is charged to profit over the lease 
term.  

  
  the related rental obligations, net of finance cost, are included in liabilities against assets subject to 

finance lease as referred to in note 8. the liabilities are classified as current and non-current depending 
upon the timing of the payment.  

  
  Assets acquired under a finance lease are depreciated over the useful life of the asset on reducing 

balance method at the rates given in note 18. depreciation on leased assets is charged to the profit 
and loss account. 

  
  depreciation on additions to leased assets is charged from the month in which an asset is acquired 

while no depreciation is charged for the month in which the asset is disposed off. 
  
 4.7.2 Operating leases
  
  Leases where a significant portion of the risks and rewards of ownership are retained by the lesser are 

classified as operating leases. payments made under operating leases (net of any incentives received 
from the lesser) are charged to profit on a straight-line basis over the lease term. 

  
4.8 Investments
  
 Held to maturity   
  
 investments with fixed maturity that the management has the intent and ability to hold to maturity are 

classified as held to maturity and are initially measured at cost and at subsequent reporting dates measured 
at amortized cost using the effective yield method.  

  
 Available for sale  
  
 investments, including those where the company has control or significant influence, that are intended to 

be held for an indefinite period or may be sold in response to a need for liquidity, are classified as available 
for sale. investments classified as available for sale, including investments in subsidiaries and associated 
undertakings, are initially measured at cost, being the fair value of consideration given. At subsequent 
reporting dates, these investments are remeasured at fair value, unless fair value cannot be reliably 
measured. unrealized gains and losses arising from changes in the fair value are included in comprehensive 
income in the period in which they arise. investment in un-quoted subsidiaries are carried at cost. 

  
 investments intended to be held for less than twelve months from the balance sheet date or to be sold to 

raise operating capital, are included in current assets, all other investments are classified as non-current. 
Management determines the appropriate classification of its investments at the time of the purchase and 
re-evaluates such designation on a regular basis. 
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 Held for trading 
  
 investments that are acquired principally for the purpose of generating a profit from short term fluctuations 

in price are classified as trading investments and included in current assets. these are initially measured 
at cost and at subsequent reporting dates, these investments are remeasured at fair value. realized and 
unrealized gains and losses arising from changes in fair value are included in net profit or loss for the period 
in which they arise. 

  
 the fair value of publicly traded securities is based on market prices quoted on the Karachi stock exchange 

at the balance sheet date. the investments for which a quoted market price is not available, are measured 
at cost as it is not practical to apply any other valuation methodology.  

  
 All purchases and sales of investments are recognized on the trade date which is the date that the company 

commits to purchase or sell the investment. Cost of purchase includes transaction cost. 
  
 At each balance sheet date, the company reviews the carrying amounts of the investments to assess 

whether there is any indication that such investments have suffered an impairment loss. if any such 
indication exists, the recoverable amount is estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment 
loss, if any. impairment losses are recognized as expense. in respect of ‘available for sale’ financial assets, 
cumulative impairment loss less any impairment loss on that financial asset previously recognized in profit 
and loss account, is removed from equity and recognized in the profit and loss account. impairment losses 
recognized in the profit and loss account on equity instruments are not reversed through the profit and loss 
account. 

  
 Investments in associates 
  
 Associates are the entities over which the Company has significant influence but not control, generally 

represented by a shareholding of between 20% and 50% of the voting right. 
  
 the Company was previously accounting for investments in associates in its separate financial statements 

at quoted market value (for listed entities) and at cost (for unlisted entities). in the consolidated financial 
statements investments in associates were accounted for using equity method. the Company, during the 
year, relinquished control over its subsidiaries, Asian stock Funds Limited, safeway Mutual Funds Limited 
and safeway Fund Limited by partially disposing  these to settle its overdue obligation to lenders and 
consequently is not required to prepare consolidated financial statements. Accordingly, the Company has 
changed its accounting policy in these financial statements and investments in associates are now being 
accounted for under the equity method. 

  
 under the new policy, the Company’s share of its associates post acquisition profits or losses is recognized 

in income and its share in post acquisition movement of reserves is recognized in reserves. Cumulative post 
acquisition movements are adjusted against the carrying value of the investments. When the Company’s 
share of losses in associates equals or exceeds its interest in the associate including any other long-term 
unsecured receivable, the Company does not recognize future losses, unless it has incurred obligations or 
made payments on behalf of the associates. Gain on transactions between the Company and its associates 
are eliminated to the extent of the Company’s interest in the associate.  

  
 Associates, which the group intends to dispose off within twelve months of the balance sheet date are not 

accounted for under the equity method and are shown under Non-current assets held for sale at the lower 
of carrying and fair value. 

  
 the new policy of the Company is in line with the requirements of iAs - 28, investments in associates, which 

specifies that investments in associates should be accounted for using equity method for all companies 
which are not preparing consolidated accounts. 
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 this change in accounting policy has been accounted for retrospectively in accordance with the 
requirements of iAs - 8, “Accounting policies, Changes in Accounting estimates and error”, and accordingly 
the comparative figures have been restated. the effects of change in accounting policy on the current and 
prior year financial statements have been summarized below: 

  2010 2009
  (Rupees in thousand)
    
 (decrease) in long term investments   (397,150)  (298,613)
 decrease in net equity   (58,525)  (353,600)
 decrease in profit after taxation for the year   (42,816)  (425,704)
 (decrease)/increase in the opening balance of the 
    retained earnings   (340,393)  85,311 
    
 decrease in earning per share - basic and diluted   0.75   (4.61) 

4.9 Stores, spares and loose tools
 
 usable stores and spares are valued principally at moving average cost, while items considered obsolete 

are carried at nil value. items in transit are valued at cost comprising invoice value plus other charges paid 
thereon. provision is made in the financial statements for obsolete and slow moving stores and spares 
based on management’s estimate. 

 
4.10 Stock-in-trade
 
 stock of raw materials, work-in-process and finished goods, except for those in transit are valued principally 

at the lower of weighted average cost and net realizable value. Cost of work-in-process and finished goods 
comprises cost of direct materials, labour and appropriate manufacturing overheads. Cost of own produced 
molasses, a by product, is determined on the basis of monthly average cost of molasses purchased from third 
parties. Cost of stillage, a by product of the effluent treatment plant used in the generation of electricity by 
the power division is valued at Nil as it does not have any market value. 

 
 Materials in transit are stated at cost comprising invoice values plus other charges paid thereon. 
 
 Net realizable value signifies the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less costs 

necessary to be incurred in order to make a sale. provision is made in the financial statements for obsolete 
and slow moving stock in trade based on management’s estimate. 

 
4.11 Financial assets and liabilities
 
 Financial assets and  financial liabilities are recognized, at the time when the company becomes a party 

to the contractual provisions of the instrument and derecognized when the company loses control of 
contractual rights that comprise the financial assets and in the case of financial liability when the obligation 
specified in the contract is discharged, cancelled or expired. Any gain or loss on derecognition of financial 
assets and financial liabilities is included in the profit and loss account for the year. All financial assets 
and liabilities are initially measured at cost, which is the fair value of consideration given and received 
respectively. these financial assets and liabilities are subsequently measured at fair value or cost as the case 
may be. the particular measurement methods adopted are disclosed in the individual policy statements 
associated with each item.  

 
4.12 Offsetting of financial assets and liabilities
 
 Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the financial statements only 

when there is a legally enforceable right to set off the recognized amount and the company intends either 
to settle on a net basis or to realize the assets and to settle the liabilities simultaneously. 
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4.13 Trade debts
 
 trade debts are carried at original invoice amount less an estimate made for doubtful receivable balances 

based on review of outstanding amounts at the year end. bad debts are written off when identified. 
 
4.14 Cash and cash equivalents
 
 Cash and cash equivalents are carried in the balance sheet at cost. For the purpose of cash flow statement, 

cash and cash equivalents comprise cash in hand, demand deposits, other short term highly liquid 
investments that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant 
risk of change in value. 

4.15 Non-current assets held for sale
 
 Non-current assets are classified as assets held for sale and stated at the lower of carrying amount and fair 

value less costs to sell if their carrying value is to be recovered principally through a sale transaction rather 
than through continuing use. 

 
4.16 Borrowings
 
 Loans and borrowings are recorded at the proceeds received. in subsequent periods, borrowings are stated at 

amortized cost using the effective yield method. preference shares, which are redeemable on a specific date 
at the option of the holder, are classified as liabilities. the dividend on these preference shares is recognized 
in the profit and loss account as finance cost. preference shares are classified as equity to the extent there 
is conclusive evidence  that these will not result in an outflow of another financial asset or exchange of 
financial assets or liabilities under conditions that are potentially unfavorable to the company. 

 
 Finance cost is accounted for on an accrual basis and are reported under accrued finance costs to the extent 

unpaid. 
 
4.17 Creditors, accruals and provisions
 
 Liabilities for creditors and other amounts payable are carried at cost, which is the fair value of the 

consideration to be paid in future for the goods and/or services received, whether or not billed to the 
company.  

 
 provisions are recognized when the company has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of 

past events, it is probable, will result in an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits, to settle 
the obligation and a reliable estimate of the amount can be made. provisions are reviewed at year end and 
adjusted to reflect the current best estimate. 

 
4.18 Deferred income
 
 deferred income represents excess of sale proceeds in relation to the carrying amount of the asset acquired 

under sale and lease back arrangement. deferred income is amortized on a straight line basis over the 
period of lease term. 

 
4.19 Derivative financial instruments
 
 these are initially recorded at cost on the date a derivative contract is entered into and are remeasured to 

fair value at subsequent reporting dates. the method of recognizing the resulting gain or loss depends 
on whether the derivative is designated as a hedging instrument, and if so, the nature of the item being 
hedged. the company designates certain derivatives as cash flow hedges. 
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 the company documents at the inception of the transaction the relationship between the hedging 
instruments and hedged items, as well as its risk management objective and strategy for undertaking 
various hedge transactions. the company also documents its assessment, both at hedge inception and on 
an ongoing basis, of whether the derivatives that are used in hedging transactions are highly effective in 
offsetting changes in cash flow of hedged items. 

 
 the effective portion of changes in the fair value of derivatives that are designated and qualify as cash flow 

hedges is recognized in equity. the gain or loss relating to the ineffective portion is recognized immediately 
in the profit and loss account. 

 
 Amounts accumulated in equity are recycled in the profit and loss account in the periods when the hedged 

item affects profit or loss. the gain or loss relating to the effective portion of interest rate swaps hedging  
variable rate borrowings is recognized in the profit and loss account within ‘finance costs’. the gain or 
loss relating to the ineffective portion is recognized in the profit and loss account within ‘other operating 
income/expenses’. 

 
4.20 Foreign currency transactions and translation
 
 Foreign currency transactions are translated into pak rupees using the exchange rates prevailing at the 

dates of the transactions. All monetary assets and liabilities in foreign currencies are translated into pak 
rupees at the rates of exchange prevailing at the balance sheet date. Foreign exchange gains and losses 
on translation are recognized in the profit and loss account. All non-monetary items are translated into 
pak rupees at exchange rates prevailing on the date of transaction or on the date when fair values are 
determined. 

 
 the financial statements are presented in pak rupees, which is the company’s functional and presentation 

currency. 
 
 Figures are rounded to nearest thousand. 
 
4.21 Borrowing costs
 
 Mark-up, interest and other charges on borrowings are capitalized up to the date of commissioning of the 

respective property, plant and equipment, acquired out of the proceeds of such borrowings. All other mark-
up, interest and other charges are charged to profit. 

 
4.22 Revenue recognition
 
 revenue from sales is recognized on dispatch of goods to customers.  
 
 revenue from sale of electricity is recognized on transmission of electricity to Faisalabad electric supply 

Company (FesCo). 
 
 dividend on equity investments is recognized as income when the right of receipt is established.  
 
 return on deposits is accrued on a time proportion basis by reference to the principal outstanding and the 

applicable rate of return. 
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4.23 Segment reporting
 
 operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chief 

operating decision maker. the chief operating decision maker, who is responsible for allocating resources 
and assessing performance of the operating segments, has been identified as the board of directors of the 
Company that makes strategic decisions. 

 
4.24 Dividends
 
 dividend distribution to the Company’s shareholders is recognized as liability at the time of their 

declaration.

5. ISSUED, SUBSCRIBED AND PAID UP CAPITAL    
     
 2010 2009   2010 2009
 (Number of shares) Ordinary  (Rupees in thousand)

  23,544,798  23,544,798 ordinary shares of rs 10 each   
      fully paid in cash   235,448   235,448 
   ordinary shares of rs 10 each issued as fully  
  33,131,816  33,131,816    paid bonus shares   331,318   331,318 
   ordinary shares of rs 10 each issued as fully  
  12,847,184 12,847,184  paid for consideration other than cash  128,472   128,472

  69,523,798  69,523,798    695,238   695,238 
     

 ordinary shares of the company held by associated undertakings as at year end are as follows:

  2010 2009
  (Number of shares)

 Asian stocks Fund Limited   2,108,319   1,975,000
 Crescent Jute products  Limited   200,640   200,640 
 Crescent steel and Allied products Limited   15,244,665   15,244,665 
 Crescent sugar Mills & distillery Limited   2,865,830   2,865,830 
 safeway Mutual Fund Limited   2,118,785   2,042,400 
 the Crescent textile Mills Limited   5,427,488   5,427,488 

     27,965,727   27,756,023
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  2010 2009
  (Rupees in thousand)

6. SURPLUS ON REVALUATION OF PROPERTY, 
   PLANT AND EQUIPMENT   
    
 revaluation - net of deferred tax   1,699,444   2,043,827 
 revaluation decrease arising during the year   -   (303,490)
 surplus transferred to accumulated losses on account of:   
 -  incremental depreciation - net of tax   (19)  (21)
 -  disposal of land   -   (40,872)

     1,699,425   1,699,444 
    
    
 Freehold land, buildings and plant and machinery of the principal facility at Jhang were revalued by an 

independent valuer as at september 30, 1979. Freehold land was again revalued as at september 30, 2007, 
september 30, 2008 and then as at september 30, 2009 by an independent valuer by reference to its current 
market price. plant and machinery and land is stated in note 16 at appreciated value. the revaluation surplus 
is net of applicable deferred income taxes. incremental depreciation represents the difference between the 
actual depreciation on buildings and plant and machinery and the equivalent depreciation based on the 
historical cost of buildings and plant and machinery.

   
  2010 2009
  (Rupees in thousand)

7. LONG TERM FINANCES    
     
 Long term loans - secured  - note 7.1  1,520,603   1,475,275 
 redeemable capital   
 preference shares (non-voting) - unsecured  - note 7.4  345,755   345,755 
 term finance certificates (non-voting) - secured  - note 7.5  630,000   630,000
 
      975,755   975,755 
 Long term running finances - secured  - note 7.6  203,183   398,706 
 Loan from Chief executive and key management    
    personnel- unsecured  - note 7.7  36,526   -
 
      2,736,067   2,849,736 
 Less: Current portion shown under current liabilities   
   - Long term loans - secured   (1,049,203)  (695,703)
   - redeemable capital - preference shares    
        (non-voting) - secured   (345,755)  (345,755)
   - redeemable capital - term finance    
       certificates (non-voting) - secured   -   (126,126)
   - Long term running finances - secured   (203,183)  (398,706)

    - note 7.2  (1,598,141)  (1,566,290)

      1,137,926   1,283,446 
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Notes to the FiNANCiAL stAteMeNts
For the year ended september 30, 2010
7.1 Long term loans - secured

     Rate of mark-up Number of installments  Mark-up 
Loan     Lender  2010   2009   per annum Outstanding payable
       
                             

(Rupees in thousand)
     

1 saudi pak Commercial bank Limited  125,000   125,000   base rate + 3.75% and monitoring  10 quarterly installments ending November

     fee of 0.25% p.a 2011, including 1 overdue installment 

      amounting to rs 12.5 million. Quarterly 

       

2 syndicate term loan                  - note 7.3  307,678   351,000   base rate + 3% subject to floor of  4 semi annual installments ending 

     5.25% November 2010, includes 3 outstanding 

      installments amounting  to rs 307.7 million semi-annual

 

       

3 MCb bank Limited  91,875   91,875   base rate + 2% subject to floor of  3 outstanding semi annual installments 

     8% ending september 2010 Quarterly

          

       

4 Faysal bank  7,500   13,750   base rate + 3.25% 6 Quarterly installments ending 

      december 2012, including 1 over-due 

      installment amounting to rs 1.25 million. Quarterly

 

5 National bank of pakistan  217,600   217,600   base rate + 2.5%  8 semi annual installments ending June 2014 Quarterly

       

6 National bank of pakistan  199,950   199,950   base rate +3% 20 quarterly installments ending June 2014 Quarterly

       

7 National bank of pakistan  171,000   -     base rate +2% 20 quarterly installments ending June 2015. Quarterly

       

8 standard Chartered bank  400,000   400,000   base rate + 2.25%  10 semi annual installments ending 

      June 2014, including 2 overdue installment 

      of rs80.05 million. semi annual

       

9 Meezan bank Limited  -     10,239   base rate + 2% subject to floor of  None Quarterly

        8% and cap of 18%  

       

10 Faysal bank  -     1,350   base rate + 2.6% None Quarterly

       

11 Faysal bank  -     511   base rate + 3% None Quarterly

       

12 Faysal bank  -     64,000   base rate + 3.25%  None semi annual

       

   1,520,603   1,475,275       

       
       

*  base rate: Average ask rate of six-month Karachi inter bank offer rate (“Kibor”) reset for each mark-up period

**  base rate: Cut-off yield of the last auction of the 6-months Government of pakistan treasury bills.

*** base rate: sbp discount rate to be set for each mark-up period

**** base rate: Average ask rate of twelve-month Karachi inter bank offer rate (“Kibor”) to be reset for each mark-up period

***** base rate: Average ask rate of three-month Karachi inter bank offer rate (“Kibor”) to be reset for each mark-up period
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 Security    
     
 Loan 1    

 this is secured against first charge on property, plant and equipment of the company ranking pari passu 
with other creditors.  

   
 Loan 2  
   
 the loan is secured by first charge by way of hypothecation over all moveable assets of the company and 

equitable mortgage charge over plant and machinery of the satellite facility at bhone and ranks pari passu 
with others credits.  

   
 Loan 3 to 4  
   
 these are secured against specific charges on plant and machinery financed through the respective loans.  

 Loan 5  
   
 these are secured by way of 1st pari passu charge over present and future property, plant and equipment 

of the company  
   
 Loan 6 to 7  
   
 these are secured by way of first pari passu charge on fixed assets of the company and specific charge over 

plant and machinery of satellite facility.  
   
 Loan 8  
   
 these are secured by way of hypothecation over all present and future moveable assets of the company 

and mortgage of land and buildings  
   
 Loan 9 to 11  
   
 these are secured against specific charges on plant and machinery financed through the respective loans.  

 Loan 12  
   
 these are secured by way of a charge on agriculture land and 1st pari passu charge on fixed assets of the 

company.  
   
7.2 the aggregate current portion of rs 1,698.14 million includes principal installments aggregating to rs 

307.484 million, which, under the terms of original loan agreements were due for repayment in period 
subsequent to september 30, 2011. the company is in negotiations with respective lenders for relaxation 
in payment terms and certain other covenants and has been successful in getting borrowings aggregating 
rs 981 million restructured during the year. the banks have not demanded any early repayment nor have 
levied any penalties. however, as the company could not repay on a timely basis the installments due uptill 
the year end september 30, 2010, which represents a breach of the respective agreements these loans 
are required to be disclosed as a current liability under the guidance contained in iAs 1 “presentation of 
financial statements”.   
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7.3 Derivative cross-currency Interest Rate Swap 
   
 the company has entered into a cross-currency interest rate swap for its syndicate term loan to hedge the 

possible adverse movements in interest rates. under the terms of the interest rate swap arrangement, the 
company pays Libor plus bank spread to the arranging bank on the syndicate term loan denominated 
in us $ for the purposes of the interest rate swap, and receives Kibor on same loan denominated in pAK 
rupees from the arranging bank. there has been no transfer of liability under this arrangement, only the 
nature of the interest payments has changed. As this hedging relationship is ineffective and does not meet 
the criteria of cash flow hedge, this arrangement does not qualify for special hedge accounting specified in 
iAs 39 ‘Financial instruments: recognition and Measurement’.  

   
7.4 Redeemable preference shares (non-voting) - unsecured 
   
 redeemable preference shares (non-voting) were issued in 2005 to the shareholders of the company in 

the ratio of 85 preference shares for every 100 ordinary shares held as on october 22, 2004 and to certain 
institutional investors in equal proportion. these shares are listed on Lahore and Karachi stock exchanges. 
the conversion option is not binding either on the company or the preference shareholders except in case 
of the conversion upon maturity, where the preference shareholders opt for conversion, subsequent to the 
company’s failure to pay preferred dividend during the entire tenure.  

   
 Terms of redemption  
   
 preference shareholders may convert preference shares into ordinary shares of the company at the end 

of every financial year or the company may convert these preference shares into ordinary shares in whole 
or in part through a tender offer. the conversion is set in the ratio of 167 ordinary shares for every 1,000 
preference shares at a face value of rs 10 each.  

   
 the preference shares were to be redeemed in year ending september 30, 2010.  
   
 Rate of dividend  
   
 the preference shareholders have a preferred right of dividend @ 8.5% per annum on a cumulative basis.   

   
7.4.1 preference shares of the company held by associated undertakings as at year end are as follows:   

 
  2010 2009
  (Number of shares)
     
 Asian stocks Fund Limited   167,500   180,000 
 Crescent steel and Allied products Limited   2,999,396   2,999,396 
 the Crescent textile Mills Limited   2,746,050   2,746,050 
 premier insurance Company of pakistan Limited   53,125   53,125
 
     5,966,071   5,978,571
  

7.5 Redeemable term finance certificates (non-voting) - secured   
     
 the tFCs have been issued to finance the acquisition and establishment of a new sugar plant and its existing 

business operations and for other purposes permitted by the Memorandum and Articles of Association. 
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 Terms of redemption 
 
 the term finance certificates (tFC’s) are now redeemable in 10 equal semi-annual installments ending on 

september 22, 2016. As per the original terms of the agreement  the principal balance was payable in ten 
equal semi-annual installments after a grace period of 1 year. the first installment was due at the end of 
March 2010. Mark up is charged at average 6 months Kibor plus 2.25% and is payable semi-annually in 
arrears. however, in May 2010, the company signed a second supplementary trust deed with the trustee for 
relaxation in payment terms. the first installment is now due in March 2012. 

 
 Security 
 
 the tFC’s are secured by a first pari passu charge by way of hypothecation over all present and future 

movable fixed assets of the company and first pari passu mortgage by deposit of title deeds over land and 
building of the Company to the extent of outstanding face value of the tFC’s plus 25% margin. 

 
7.6 Long term running finances - secured
 
 Long term running finance facilities available from the bank of punjab under mark-up arrangements 

have expired in July 2009 and are repayable immediately. the outstanding balance carries a markup of re 
0.463 per rs 1,000 per diem. the aggregate running finances are secured against pledge of stock-in-trade, 
marketable securities and ranking charge on current assets of the company.  

 
7.7 Loan from Chief Executive and key management personnel- unsecured
 
 these are unsecured interest free loans obtained from the following on september 29, 2010 and repayable 

in lump sum on september 29, 2012:

 Name  Amount of loan
   (Rupees in thousand)
   
 Mian Ahsan saleem  Chief executive  15,000 
 Mian Anjum saleem Managing director  30,000 
 Mrs Anjum saleem spouse of Managing director  5,000 

    50,000

 these have been recognized at amortized cost using discount rate of 17% per annum. the resulting gain 
has been recognized in profit and loss account as referred to in note 36.       

  2010 2009
  (Rupees in thousand)
8. LIABILITIES AGAINST ASSETS SUBjECT TO FINANCE LEASE   
     
 present value of minimum lease payments  251,877   351,051 
 Less: Current portion shown under current liabilities - note 8.1  (193,300)  (197,276)

     58,577   153,775 
     
 the minimum lease payments have been discounted at an implicit interest rate ranging from 14.48% to 

17.38% to arrive at their present value. rentals are paid in monthly/quarterly/semi-annual installments and 
in case of default in any payment, an additional charge at the rate of 3% to 20% shall be paid. the lessee has 
the option to purchase the assets after expiry of the lease term.    

 taxes, repairs and insurance costs are to be born by the company. in case of early termination of lease, the 
lessee shall pay entire amount of rentals for unexpired period of lease agreement.  
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 the amount of future payments of the lease and the period in which these payments will become due are 
as follows:

    
   Minimum Future Present value of 
   Lease finance lease liability  
   payments cost 2010 2009
                            (Rupees in thousand)  
     
 Not later than one year  206,834   13,534   193,300   197,276 
 Later than one year and not later     
   than five years  83,456   24,879   58,577   153,775 

    290,290   38,413   251,877   351,051 

8.1      the aggregate current portion includes rs 148.45 million which represents the present value of minimum 
lease payment payable to Meezan bank Limited under a compromise agreement entered into with the 
bank in May 2010. While the minimum lease payments are payable in installments upto March 2013 , 
however, the Company settled its liability in full in december 2010 under an agreement with the bank and 
consequently this has been shown in current liabilities.

  2010 2009
  (Rupees in thousand)

9. EMPLOYEES’ RETIREMENT BENEFITS   
    
 balance sheet obligations for:   
    
 pension fund  - note 9.1  12,577   13,855 
 Gratuity fund  - note 9.2  (3,092)  (1,541)

     9,485   12,314 
    
 profit and Loss account charge for:   
    
 pension benefits  - note 9.1  6,791   9,155 
 Gratuity benefits  - note 9.2  2,290   3,697 

     9,081   12,852 
    
9.1 Pension fund   
    
 the amounts recognized in the balance sheet are determined as follows:   
    
 present value of defined benefit obligations   166,684   161,675 
 Fair value of plan assets   (174,627)  (168,530)
 Non vested (past service) cost to be   
    recognized in later periods   (2,865)  (4,298)
 unrecognized actuarial losses   23,385   25,008 
    
 Liability as at september 30   12,577   13,855 
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  2010 2009
  (Rupees in thousand)

 the movement in the defined benefit obligation over the year is as follows:   
    
 present value of defined benefit obligations as at october 1   161,675   145,490 
 Current service Cost   6,922   8,433 
 interest Cost   19,401   20,369 
 benefits paid during the year   (5,087)  (4,437)
 Actuarial gains   (16,227)  (8,180)

 present value of defined benefit obligations as at september 30  166,684   161,675 
    
 the movement in the fair value of plan assets of the  year is as follows:   
    
 Fair value as at october 1   168,530   147,386 
 expected return on plan assets   20,224   20,634 
 Contributions during the year   (499)  7,322 
 benefits paid during the year   (5,087)  (4,437)
 Actuarial losses   (8,541)  (2,375)

 Fair value as at september 30   174,627   168,530 
    
 the amounts recognized in the profit and Loss Account are as follows:   
    
 Current service Cost   6,922   8,433 
 interest Cost   19,401   20,369 
 expected return on plan assets   (20,224)  (20,634)
 past service Cost   1,433   1,433 
 Actuarial gain recognized   (741)  (446)

 total, included in salaries and wages   6,791   9,155 
    
 the amounts recognized were included in the profit and Loss Account as follows:   
    
 Cost of sales   2,858   3,741 
 Administrative expenses   3,933   5,370 
 Capital work in progress   -   44 
    
 total, included in salaries and wages   6,791   9,155 
    
 the actual return on plan assets was rs 3.115 million (2009: rs 18.260 million)   
    
 the principal actuarial assumptions used were as follows:   
  2010 2009
    
 discount rate  13% 12%
 expected return on plan assets  14% 14%
 Future salary increases   12% 11%
 Average expected remaining working life time of employees  11 years 11 years
    

Notes to the FiNANCiAL stAteMeNts
For the year ended september 30, 2010



47

  2010 2009
  (Rupees in thousand)

 plan assets are comprised as follows:   
 equity  instruments   29,259   31,035 
 debt instruments   163,390   107,145 
 others   (18,022)  30,350 

     174,627   168,530 
    
 Fair value of plan assets include preference shares of the company whose fair value as at september 30, 

2010 is rs 0.878 million (2009: rs 3.511 million).   

 the present value of defined benefit obligation, the fair value of plan assets and the surplus or deficit of 
pension fund is as follows:

   2009-10 2008-09 2007-08 2006-07 2005-06
     (Rupees in thousand)    

 As at September 30     
      
 present value of defined benefit obligations 166,684  161,675   145,490   139,975   109,038  

    
 Fair value of plan assets 174,627  (168,530)  (147,386)  (135,250)  (116,759)

 (surplus)/deficit 341,311  (6,855)  (1,896)  4,725   (7,721)
      
 experience adjustment on plan liabilities (16,227)  8,180  (12,513)  16,797   (7,997) 
      
 experience adjustment on plan assets (8,541)  (2,375)  (3,450)  6,737   6,836 

  2010 2009
  (Rupees in thousand)
9.2 Gratuity fund   
    
 the amounts recognized in the balance sheet are determined as follows:   
    
 present value of defined benefit obligations   45,621   42,362 
 Fair value of plan assets   (52,048)  (46,756)
 unrecognized actuarial losses/(gains)   3,335   2,853 

 Asset as at september 30   (3,092)  (1,541)
    
 the movement in the defined benefit obligation over the year is as follows:   
    
 present value of defined benefit obligations as at october 1   42,362   39,264 
 Current service Cost   2,906   3,750 
 interest Cost   5,930   5,497 
 benefits paid during the year   (445)  (1,518)
 Actuarial gains   (5,132)  (4,631)

 present value of defined benefit obligations as at september 30  45,621   42,362
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  2010 2009
  (Rupees in thousand)

 the movement in the fair value of plan assets of the  year is as follows:
   
 Fair value as at october 1   46,756   39,642 
 expected return on plan assets   3,841   5,550 
 Contributions during the year   6,546   4,244 
 benefits paid during the year   (445)  (1,518)
 Actuarial losses   (4,650)  (1,162)

 Fair value as at september 30   52,048   46,756 
    
 the amounts recognized in the profit and Loss Account are as follows:   
    
 Current service Cost   2,906   3,750 
 interest Cost   5,930   5,497 
 expected return on plan assets   (6,546)  (5,550)

 total, included in salaries and wages   2,290   3,697 
    
 the amounts recognized were included in the 
    profit and Loss Account as follows:   
    
 Cost of sales   955   1,583 
 Administrative expenses   1,335   2,114 

 total, included in salaries and wages   2,290   3,697 
    
 the actual return on plan assets was rs 1.896 million (2009: rs 1.859 million)   
    
  2010 2009
 the principal actuarial assumptions used were as follows:   
    
 discount rate  13% 12%
 expected return on plan assets  14% 14%
 Future salary increases   12% 12%
 Average expected remaining working life time of employees  10 years 11 years
    
  2010 2009
  (Rupees in thousand)
 
 plan assets are comprised as follows:   
 equity  instruments   3,737   10,266 
 debt instruments   47,126   40,863 
 others   1,185   (4,373)

     52,048   46,756 
    
 Fair value of plan assets include ordinary shares and preference shares of the company whose fair values 

as at september 30, 2010 are rs 0.249 million (2009: rs 0.516 million) and rs 0.127 million (2009: rs 0.509 
million) respectively.   

    

Notes to the FiNANCiAL stAteMeNts
For the year ended september 30, 2010



49

 the present value of defined benefit obligation, the fair value of plan assets and the surplus or deficit of 
gratuity fund is as follows:   

   2009-10 2008-09 2007-08 2006-07 2005-06
     (Rupees in thousand)    

 As at September 30     
      
 present value of defined benefit obligations 45,621  42,362   39,264   33,353   23,173 
 Fair value of plan assets (52,048)  (46,756)  (39,642)  (36,491)  (30,236)

 surplus (6,427)  (4,394)  (378)  (3,138)  (7,063)

 experience adjustment on plan liabilities (5,132)  (4,631)  (789)  4,655   (3,225) 
 experience adjustment on plan assets (4,650)  (1,162)  (1,552)  551   785 
       
        
10. DEFERRED INCOME     

 this represents the unamortized balance of excess of sale proceeds over carrying amount of property, plant 
and equipment on sale and lease back transactions with financial institutions.    

 the deferred income is being amortized each year over the respective period of the lease term. the amount 
credited to the profit and loss account during the year was rs 2.307 million (2009: rs 3.487 million).

  2010 2009
  (Rupees in thousand)
11. CURRENT PORTION OF LONG TERM LIABILITIES   
    
 Long term finances  - note 7  1,598,141   1,566,290 
 Liabilities against assets subject to finance lease  - note 8  193,300   197,276 

     1,791,441   1,763,566 
    
 Current portion of long term liabilities include overdue installments of principal aggregating to rs 629.337 

million (2009: rs 650.442 million).   
    
12. SHORT TERM BORROwINGS - SECURED   
    
 running finances - note 12.2  1,857,055   3,052,895 
 export refinance - note 12.3  665,168   661,867 
 term finances - note 12.4  323,416   339,773 

     2,845,639   4,054,535 
    
12.1      As per the original terms of the respective agreements with the banks, the aggregate borrowing facilities 

stand expired as at september 30, 2010. the company, as referred to in note 1.2 entered into restructuring 
agreements with the lenders, except National bank of pakistan Limited which has extended its facility 
separately, whereby it was allowed a bridge loan facility of rs 2,466 million and short term running finance 
of rs 2,980 million was extended up to october 31, 2010 at the rate of three month Kibor plus 1% and one 
month Kibor plus 3% respectively. however as referred therein the bridge finance and consortium short 
term running finance have not become operative to date. the Company however, has accrued markup on 
facilities aggregating to rs 2,466 million at three months of Kibor plus 1% as it believes that it is liable to 
pay markup under the terms of the bridge loan agreement instead of the original agreements, which stand 
expired. the banks have not demanded the rate of markup as per previous facilities and the Company is 
confident that the bridge loan will become operative and its timelines extended.   
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12.2 Running finances   
    
 As per the original facilities, these finances were available at a markup ranging from re 0.3633 to re 0.3863 

per rs 1,000 per diem on the outstanding balance or part thereof. the aggregate running finances are 
secured against pledge of stock-in-trade and marketable securities and registered hypothecation charge 
on property, plant and equipment and current assets of the company.   

    
12.3 Export refinance   
    
 As per the original facilities, these finances were available at a markup ranging from re 0.0926 to re 0.2423 

per rs 1,000 per diem or part thereof. the aggregate export and import finances are secured against lien on 
export contracts and first charge on current assets of the company.   

    
12.4 Term finances   
    
 As per the original facilities, these finances were available at a markup ranging from re 0.3633 to re 0.4411 

per rs 1,000 per diem on the balance outstanding or part thereof. these are secured against pledge of 
stock-in-trade and registered charge on current and certain non-current assets of the company.   

 of the aggregate facility of rs 10 million (2009: rs 400 million) for opening of letters of credit and rs 10 
million (2009: rs 110 million) for guarantees, that was available to the company up till september 30, 2010, 
the amount utilized at september 30, 2010 was Nil (2009: Nil) and rs 9.552 million (2009: rs 86.500 million) 
respectively. the aggregate facilities of letter of credits are secured against lien over shipping/import 
documents. the aggregate facilities for guarantees are secured against margin deposits referred to in note 
28, pledge of marketable securities and charge on current assets of the company.   

    
 the aggregate facilities are additionally secured against ranking charges on non-current assets of the 

company.

  2010 2009
  (Rupees in thousand)
13. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES   
    
 trade creditors  - note 13.1  569,012   544,624 
 Advances from customers   201,772   192,455 
 security deposits  - note 13.2  25,490   2,903 
 Accrued liabilities   164,737   101,324 
 Workers’ profit participation fund  -  note 13.3  -   - 
 Workers’ welfare fund -  note 13.4  3,191   2,388 
 payable to government   
 - sales tax   22,707   3,417 
 unclaimed dividend   1,561   1,564 
 derivative interest rate swap -  note 13.5  102,716   29,771 
 penalties payable   1,226   5,001 
 others -  note 13.6  25,111   52,927 
    
     1,117,523   936,374
 
    
13.1      trade creditors include amount due to related parties rs 7.679 million (2009: rs 1.637 million).   

13.2      these are interest free and refundable on completion of contracts.   
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  2010 2009
  (Rupees in thousand)
13.3 workers’ profit participation fund   
    
 As at october 1   -   94 
 Less:  payments made during the year   -   (94)

 As at september 30   -   - 

13.4 workers’ welfare fund   
    
 As at october 1   2,388   1,598 
 Charge for the year   803   790 

 As at september 30   3,191   2,388 
    
13.5  the company has entered into derivative interest rate swap arrangements to hedge for the possible adverse 

movements in interest rates arising on the interest payments due on its long term finances as mentioned 
in note 7.2. the derivative interest rate swap arrangements outstanding as at september 30, 2010 have 
been marked to market and the resulting loss of rs 16.806 million (2009: gain of rs 7.187 million) has been 
recognized in profit and loss account as referred to in note 35 as this hedging relationship does not meet the 
criteria of cash flow hedge and does not qualify for special hedge accounting specified in iAs 39 ‘Financial 
instruments: recognition and Measurement’.    

    
13.6 included in other liabilities are provisions aggregating to rs 17.792 million  (2009: rs 17.792 million) in 

respect of probable loss from pending litigation of the company against sales tax authorities and the excise 
department. the movement in these provisions during the year is as follows:

  2010 2009
  (Rupees in thousand)

 As at october 1   17,792   29,038 
 provision written back during the year   -     (11,246)

 As at september 30   17,792   17,792 
    
 the above provisions have been made as per the management’s best estimate against various demands 

raised by the sales tax Authorities and the excise department, which are being contested by the company 
at various forums.    

  2010 2009
  (Rupees in thousand)
14. ACCRUED FINANCE COST   
    
 Accrued mark-up on:   
 -  Long term finances   494,833   274,124 
 -  Liabilities against assets subject to finance leases   14,557   23,015 
 -  short term borrowings   303,473   313,433 

    - note 14.1  812,863   610,572 
    
14.1    this includes finance cost of rs 442.193 million (2009: rs 331.010 million) which is overdue for payment as 

at september 30, 2010.     
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15. CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS   
    
15.1 Contingencies       
 (i)   the company has issued following guarantees:       
  bank guarantee of rs 9.552 million (2009: rs 86.50 million) in favour of sui Northern Gas pipelines 

Limited against performance of contracts.       
  Cross corporate guarantee in favour of Allied bank Limited to secure long term finance facility availed by 

the Company’s associate, shakarganj Food products Limited of rs 467 million (2009: rs 467 million).       
 (ii) the company has issued a post dated cheque in favour of the Collector of Customs against custom 

duty clearance in respect of import of plant and machinery amounting to rs 5.040 million (2009: 5.040 
million).    

 (iii)   Consequent upon filing of petition by the company in the honorable Lahore high Court to set aside 
srp655(1)/2007, through which special excise duty was levied with effect from July 1, 2007, the 
company has not provided for an amount of rs 46.198 million on account of special excise duty levied 
on sale of sugar. the honorable court has provided an interim relief to the company in the form of a 
stay order and the final decision of the court is yet to be made. the Company, based on the opinion 
of its legal advisor, is confident that the petition will be decided in their  favour setting aside the 
provisions under the above sro.    

 (iv)  the company has not been able to pay long term loan installments on the respective due dates 
consequently the lenders as per the agreement may charge  penalties approximating to rs 28 million. 
the penalty charges have not been recognized in financial statements as the management is confident 
that it will be able to get all its obligations rescheduled/restructured.    

 (v)  As referred to in note 1.2, the Company entered into a bridge finance agreement with a consortium 
of banks for rs 2,466 million to be repaid by 30 June, 2011 from the sale of assets, identified in the 
agreement. For reasons specified in the note 1.2, the bridge facility could not be released to the 
Company till the date of these financial statements. however, the Company is confident that this 
will become operative as it has complied with all significant conditions precedents contained in the 
bridge finance facility and is also confident that the timelines contained therein for sale of identified 
assets along with the repayment of the bridge loan will be extended. the Company has, in these 
financial statements, accrued markup based on the reduced rates contained in the bridge finance 
agreement on its respective borrowings to the tune of rs 2,466 million. had the markup been accrued 
at the terms of original agreements, it would have been higher by rs 56 million approximately. the 
Company, based on the foregoing ground, is however confident that the lenders will not demand 
markup as per original agreements.   

    
15.2 Commitments   
    
 the company has the following commitments in respect of   
    
 (i) Contract for capital expenditure amounting to rs 71.213 million (2009: rs 71.213 million).

 (ii)    Contracts for acquisition of intangible (computer software) amounting to rs 20 million (2009: 20 
million).

 (iii)    Contracts for other than capital expenditures rs 1.3 million (2009: 5.008 million).

 (iv)    the amount of future payments under operating leases and the period in which these payments will 
become due are as follows:

  2010 2009
  (Rupees in thousand)    
 Not later than one year   6,368   27,037 
 Later than one year and not later than five years   7,737   30,139 

     14,105   57,176  
    

Notes to the FiNANCiAL stAteMeNts
For the year ended september 30, 2010



53

16. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT           
 
      2010                                                 (Rupees in thousand)
 Cost/   Reclassified Cost/ Accumulated  Depre- Reclassi- Accumulated Book 
 re-valued   to Non- re-valued depreciation   ciation fied to Non-  depreciation  value Rate of
  amount   current Assets  amount as at Trans-  charge/  current  Assets as at as at depreci-
 October Transfers in/ Additions/ helf for September October fers in/  (deletions)    held for September September ation
 1, 2009 (Out) (deletions) disposal (*) 30, 2010 1, 2009 (Out)  for the year   disposal (*)  30, 2010 30, 2010 %
            
Freehold land  1,997,513   -   5,826   (1,138,426)  864,913   -    -   -   -   864,913  -
buildings and roads on             
  freehold land  581,240   -   43,443   (66,343)  558,340   212,612    26,607   (2,855)  236,364   321,976  7.5
plant and machinery  5,901,824   56,000   36,514   (813,972)  5,165,433   2,153,574   18,789   251,763   (77,068)  2,332,318   2,833,115  7.5-30
    (14,933)      (14,740)    
tools and equipment  81,993   -   2,759   (1,754)  77,604   64,228    8,911   (781)  67,348   10,256  20-40
    (5,394)      (5,010)    
Water, electric and             
  weighbridge equipment  374,540   -   2,291   (101,040)  275,344   186,201    26,671   (21,997)  190,549   84,795  20-40
    (447)      (326)    
Furniture and fixtures  40,725   -   200   (154)  40,651   28,796    2,386   (42)  31,083   9,568  20
    (120)      (57)    
office equipment  36,607   -   247   (450)  35,569   33,471    1,879   (134)  34,516   1,053  40
    (835)      (700)    
Vehicles  100,349   32,780   2,739   (725)  102,953   53,132   22,609   10,279   (557)  68,395   34,558  20
    (32,190)      (17,068)    
Laboratory equipment  18,119   -   -   -   18,119   15,715    964   -   16,679   1,440  40
Arms and ammunition  176   -   156   -   332   92    35   -   127   205  10
Library books  10,422   -   70   -   10,492   9,692    156   -   9,848   644  30
            
  9,143,508   88,780   94,245   (2,122,864)  7,149,750   2,757,513   41,398   329,651   (103,434)  2,987,227   4,162,523  

   -   (53,919)  -      (37,901)    

(*)    this represents cost/revalued amount and accumulated depreciation on assets of the Farm division and satellite facility at dargai shah after the decision was 
made during the year to sell them off for retirement of the Company’s obligations to the lenders referred to in note 7 and 12. these are now classified as “Non-cur-
rent assets held for sale” as referred to in note 30.

      2009                                                 (Rupees in thousand)
 Cost/ Transferred  Effect of Cost/ Accumulated Transferred Depre- Reclassi- Accumulated Book 
 re-valued from  revaluation re-valued depreciation from Non-  ciation fied from  depreciation  value Rate of
  amount Non-current  as at   amount as at current  charge/  Non-current  as at as at depreci-
 October asset held Additions/ September September October asset held  (deletions)     assets held September September ation
 1, 2008 for sale (deletions) 30, 2009 30, 2009 1, 2008 for sale  for the year   for sale  30, 2009 30, 2009 %
            
Freehold land  1,389,614   959,279   8,181   (303,490)   1,997,513  -   -   -   -   -  1,997,513  -
    (56,071)         
buildings and roads on             
  freehold land  575,700   729   37,811   -   581,240   187,110   168   30,650   -   212,612   368,628  7.5
    (33,000)      (5,316)    
plant and machinery  5,212,798   -   716,834   -   5,901,824   1,870,469   -   289,318   -   2,153,574   3,748,250  7.5-30
    (27,808)      (6,213)    
tools and equipment  26,980   53,267   3,426   -   81,993   21,064   34,504   10,167   -   64,228   17,765  20-40
    (1,680)      (1,507)    
Water, electric and             
  weighbridge equipment  262,130   11,294   102,160   -   374,540   136,909   6,952   42,921   -   186,201   188,339  20-40
    (1,044)      (581)    
Furniture and fixtures  39,494   886   535   -   40,725   25,360   541   2,957   -   28,796   11,929  20
    (190)      (62)    
office equipment  35,629   334   937   -   36,607   30,402   185   3,079   -   33,471   3,136  40
    (293)      (195)    
Vehicles  57,340   37,998   10,700   -   100,349   29,097   15,445   11,634   -   53,132   47,217  20
    (5,689)      (3,044)    
Laboratory equipment  18,119   -   -   -   18,119   14,108   -   1,607   -   15,715   2,404  40

Arms and ammunition  107   -   69   -   176   84   -   8   -   92   84  10

Library books  10,345   -   77   -   10,422   9,387   -   305   -   9,692   730  30            

  7,628,256   1,063,787   880,730    (303,490)   9,143,508  2,323,990   57,795   392,646   -   2,757,513   6,385,995 

   -   (125,775)  -      (16,918)

16.1 the carrying amount of freehold land, buildings and plant and machinery would have been rs 273.7 million 
(2009: rs 298.329 million), rs 301.671 million  (2009: rs 326.131 million) and rs 3,452.809 (2009: rs 3,732.766) 
million respectively, had there been no revaluation.

16.2 property, plant and equipment include assets with a book value of rs 17.63 million (2009: rs 19.060 million), 
rs 1.924 million (2009: rs 2.080 million ) and rs 1.711 million (2008: rs 1.850 million) which are in the name of 
innovative housing Finance Limited, security Leasing Corporation Limited and dawood Leasing Company 
Limited.
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  2010 2009
  (Rupees in thousand)
16.3 the depreciation charge for the year has been allocated as follows:   
    
 Cost of sales - note 32  271,003   344,626 
 Administrative expenses - note 33  16,672   24,654 
 discontinued operations - note 30  41,976   3,196 
 property, plant and equipment - trial run   -   18,199 
 Capital work-in-progress - unallocated expenditure   -   1,971 

     329,651   392,646  
    
16.4      Disposal of property, plant and equipment
    (Rupees in thousand)  
   Accumulated Book Sale Mode of
Particulars of assets Sold to       Cost depreciation value proceeds disposal
      
Office equipment Outside parties     
 eFu insurance  835   700   135   1,190  insurance policy
      
water, electric and  Outside parties     
  weighbridge equipment Local Growers  494   295   199   22  Negotiation
      
Tools and equipment Local Growers  1,554   1,387   167   600    - do -  
 Local Contractors  1,762   1,609   153   1,250    - do -  
      
Vehicles Employees     
 Mr. Muhammad Ashfaq  129   46   83   93  As per
      Company policy 
 Mr. Muhammed Awais Qureshi  1,178   823   355   309    - do -  
 Mr. Kazim Ali  390   257   133   156    - do -  
 Mr. saad Akhtar Jafari  882   646   236   258    - do -  
 Mr. Aslam  95   8   87   93    - do -  
 Mr. Abdul sattar  188   125   63   140    - do -  
 Mr. Zahid Mehmood  398   265   133   297    - do -  
 Mr. Asif Ali Malik   217   18   199   212    - do -  
 Mr. M. parvez Akhtar   298   247   51   382    - do -  
 Mr. Abdul razaq   276   202   74   189    - do -  
 Mr Zahid Mehmood   217   18   199   212    - do -  
 Mr. Muhamamd saifullah   398   265   133   297    - do -  
 Mr. Muhamamd siddique sahi   398   265   133   297    - do -  
 Mr. Manzoor hussain Malik  1,108   868   240   276    - do -  
 Mr. Abbass Ali Gill  398   265   133   297    - do -  
 Mr. Akhtar habib  95   8   87   93    - do -  
 Mr. Muhamamd saeed  187   125   62   140    - do -  
      
 Outside parties     
 Anjum Motors Karachi  2,128   1,903   225   1,369   Negotiation 
 Nasir Kambo  4,160   2,178   1,982   5,165  Auction
 shah Kameer  595   206   389   1,400    - do -  
 Najeeb ullah  198   69   129   500    - do -  
 Muhammad Aslam Khan  198   69   129   500    - do -  
 Mukhtar Gondal  747   394   353   1,325    - do -  
 Alam sher  163   60   103   450    - do -  
 rana Mukhtar  163   60   103   300    - do -  
 Muhammad ejaz Noon  155   54   101   345    - do -  
 Ali Asghar khan  198   69   129   575    - do -  
 Ghulam Abbas sajowal  397   138   259   1,020    - do -  
 Zulfiqar Ali  155   54   101   395    - do -  
 hanif & Co  11,899   4,375   7,524   8,800    - do -  
      
Other assets having book value below Rs 50,000  21,267   19,830   1,437   7,487  
      
   53,920   37,901   16,019   36,434 
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  2010 2009
  (Rupees in thousand)
16.5 The gain on disposal for the year has been allocated as follows:   
    
 other income - note 36  7,304   4,496 
 Non Current Assets held For sale and 
    discontinued operations - note 30.4  13,112   - 

     20,416   4,496 
17.     INTANGIBLE ASSETS
         

     2010                                  (Rupees in thousand)  

   Transferred  Accumulated Amorti- Transferred  Accumulated  Book value Rate
 Cost as at Additions/ from Non- Cost as at amortization  zation  from Non- amortization as at of amorti-
 October 01, (transfers/ current asset September October 01,  charge for  current asset September 30, September ization
 2009 deletions) held for sale 30, 2010 2009 the year held for sale 2010 30, 2010 %
          
Computer software - acquired  1,700   -     -     1,700   1,020   340   -     1,360   340  20
Nepra license fee      367    640   1,007       46      36   16         98   909  3.7-5.0

  2,067   -     640   2,707   1,066   376   16   1,458   1,249  

     2009                                   (Rupees in thousand)  

   Transferred  Accumulated Amorti- Transferred  Accumulated  Book value Rate

 Cost as at Additions/ to Assets Cost as at amortization  zation  to Assets amortization as at of amorti-

 October 01, (transfers/ held for September October 01,  charge for  held for September 30, September ization

 2008 deletions) disposal 30, 2009 2008 the year disposal 2009 30, 2009 %
          
Computer software - acquired  1,700   -     -     1,700   680   340   -     1,020      680  20
Nepra license fee  1,007   -     (640)     367     33      29   (16)        46       321  3.7-5.0

  2,707   -     (640)  2,067   713   369   (16)  1,066   1,001

 
          

17.1     the amortization charge for the year has been allocated to cost of sales as referred to in note 33.

18.     ASSETS SUBjECT TO FINANCE LEASE
           

     2010                                  (Rupees in thousand)  

  Reclassified    Reclassified Depre-  Book 
  to  Cost  Accumulated to Non-    ciation  Accumulated  value Rate of
 Cost as at Non-current  as at depreciation current  charge/ depreciation as at depre-
 October 01, asset held Additions/ September October 01, asset held (transfers) September September ciation
 2009 for sale transfers 30, 2010 2009 for sale  for the year  30, 2010 30, 2010 %

           

           
plant and machinery  571,750   (260,119)  -   255,631   65,902   (22,400)  25,163   49,876   205,755  7.5
    (56,000)     (18,789)   
Vehicles  65,403  -  -   32,623   35,621   -         4,363   17,375   15,248  20
    (32,780)     (22,609)   
          
  637,153   (260,119)  -   288,254   101,523   (22,400)  29,526   67,251   221,003  
    (88,780)     (41,398)     

            

     2009                                 (Rupees in thousand)  

  Transferred    Classified Depre-  Book 
  from  Cost  Accumulated as Non-    ciation  Accumulated  value Rate of
 Cost as at Non-current Additions/ as at depreciation current  charge/  depreciation as at depre-
 October 01, asset held transfers September October 01, asset held (transfers) September September ciation
 2008 for sale  30, 2009 2008 for sale  for the year  30, 2009 30, 2009 %

           

           
plant and machinery  373,438   -   260,119   571,750   75,791   -      36,033  65,902   505,848  7.5
    (61,807)     (45,922)    
           
Vehicles  77,623   6,140   -   65,403   40,192   204     7,420  35,621   29,782  20
    (18,360)     (12,195)    

  451,061   6,140   260,119   637,153   115,983   204   43,453  101,523   535,630 
    (80,167)     (58,117)
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  2010 2009
  (Rupees in thousand)
18.1 the depreciation charge for the year has been 
    allocated as follows:   
    
 Cost of sales - note 32  17,394   31,155 
 Administrative expenses - note 33  4,363   7,420 
 discontinued operations - note 30  7,769   - 
 property, plant and equipment - trial run   -   4,878 

     29,526   43,453  

19. CAPITAL wORk-IN-PROGRESS   
    
 Civil works    -     30,573 
 plant and Machinery   - note 19.1 28,396   42,310 
 unallocated expenditure -  note 19.2  -     13 

    28,396   72,896 
 Advances given for capital work in progress -  note 19.3  256,145   277,771 
    
 Less: reclassified to non-current assets held for sale -  note 30  (196,079)  -   

     88,462   350,667  
    
19.1 Movement in unallocated expenditure

 opening balance   13   80,406 
    
 expenses incurred during the year   
 salaries wages & other benefits -  note 19.2.1  25,701   4,684 
 stores and spares consumed   -     2,877 
 Fuel and power  -     3,354 
 rent, rates and taxes  -     1,380 
 insurance  -     544 
 Freight and transportation   -     1,544 
 travelling and conveyance  -     744 
 Consultancy Charges  -    -   
 depreciation on property plant and equipment  -     1,971 
 Miscellaneous expenses  -     1,919 
 Markup on:  -     229 
 Long term Loan   -    4,849 
 Lease Liability  -     -   
 trial run Loss -  note 19.2.2  -    61,386 

      25,701   85,481 

19.2 Unallocated expenditure to date -  note 19.2.4  25,714   165,887 
    
 Unallocated expenditure capitalized  -     (162,407)
 Charged to administrative expense   -     (3,467)
 Charged to cost of sales   (25,714)  -   

     -     13  
    
    
19.2.1 salaries wages and other benefits include rs Nil (2009 : rs 0.020 million) in respect of pension fund.  
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  2010 2009
  (Rupees in thousand)
19.2.2 Trial run operating loss   
    
 Sales   -     45,689     
 Cost of goods sold       
 raw Material consumed  -     109,053 
 salaries wages & other benefits -  note 19.2.3  -     9,554 
 stores and spares consumed   -     2,145 
 dyes and Chemical   -     2,777 
 Fuel and power   -     12,437 
 repair and maintenance   -     436 
 depreciation on property plant and equipment    -     18,199 
 depreciation of leased assets    -     4,877 
 other expenses    -     1,266 

 Cost of goods manufactured    -     160,744 
 Less: Work in process at the conclusion of trial production run    -     (1,138)

 Cost of goods produced during trial production run    -     159,606 
 Less: Finished goods at the conclusion of trial production run    -     (52,531)

     -     107,075 

 trial run operating loss    -     (61,386)
    

19.2.3   salaries, wages and other benefits include rs Nil (2009: rs 0.024) in respect of pension fund.    
19.2.4   this includes borrowing cost of rs Nil (2009: rs 50.730 million) in aggregate.

19.3 Advances       
 Considered good:   
  - Civil works   -     11,858 
  - plant and machinery   253,749   251,114 
  - intangibles   -     10,290 
  - others   2,396   4,509 

 Considered doubtful:   256,145   277,771 

  - plant and machinery   1,000   1,890 
  - intangibles   11,674   1,384 

     12,674   3,274 

     268,819   281,045 
 Less: provision against doubtful advances - note 19.4  (12,674)  (3,274)

     256,145   277,771 
    
19.4 Provision against doubtful advances       
 As at october 1   3,274   -   
 provision during the year   11,674   3,274 
 Advances written off against provision during the year   (2,274)  -   

 As at september 30   12,674   3,274
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  2010 2009
  (Rupees in thousand)

20. BIOLOGICAL ASSETS   
    
 sugarcane   
    Mature   13,520   23,171 
    immature   -     3,963 

     13,520   27,134 
 rice - mature   -     2,537 
 others - mature   1,623   -   
 Livestock - mature   8,479   6,818 

     23,622   36,489 
    
 Non - current   8,479   10,781 
 Current   15,143   25,708 

     23,622   36,489 
    
    
20.1 the value of sugarcane crops is based on estimated average yield of 340 (2009: 353) mounds per acre on 

cultivated area of 388 (2009: 1,406) acres. the value of rice crops is based on the estimated yield of Nil (2009: 
20) mounds per acre on cultivated area of Nil (2009: 239) acres. As at september 30, 2010, Nil (2009:  1,140) 
acres are under preparation for wheat cultivation.   

    
20.2 388 acres relates to sugarcane cultivation which is valued at a cost of rs 13.52 million. As the crop is in early 

stages, its fair value less estimated point of sale cost cannot be reliably measured.

  2010 2009
  (Rupees in thousand)

20.3 Movement during the year   
    
 As at october 1   36,489   160,110 
 increase due to purchases/costs incurred   80,907   187,667 
 Loss arising from changes in fair value   
    less estimated point of sale costs   (29,912)  (71,681)
 decreases due to harvest/sales   (63,862)  (239,607)

 As at september 30   23,622   36,489 
    
  2010 2009
  (Rupees in thousand)
   restated

21. INVESTMENTS - RELATED PARTIES   
    
 in equity instruments of associates  - note 21.1  415,269   298,624 
 Available for sale  - note 21.3  413   83,672 
 Advance against purchase of shares in associated company   
  - shakarganj Food products Limited   -   171,000 

     415,682   553,296 
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  2010 2009
  (Rupees in thousand)
   restated
21.1 In equity instruments of associates   
    
 Cost   444,494   52,529 
 brought forward amounts of post acquisition reserves   
 profits and negative goodwill recognized directly in   
 profit and loss accounts   19,362   104,317 

     463,856   156,846 
    
 Add:   
 - share of net assets upon conversion of subsidiary into associate  -     196,961 
 - Carrying amount of goodwill on conversion into associate   -     25,866 

     -     222,827 
    
 share of movement in reserves during the year   2,389   (8,064)
    
 share of loss for the year   
 - before taxation   (22,229)  (59,835)
 - provision for taxation   (20,587)  (13,150)

     (42,816)  (72,985)
    
    423,429   298,624 
 dividend received during the year   (8,160)  - 
    
 balance as on september 30 - note 21.2  415,269   298,624 
    
21.2 In equity instruments of associates   
    
 Quoted       
 Crescent Steel and Allied Products Limited       
 2,720,062 (2009: 2,820,062) 
    fully paid ordinary shares of rs 10 each 
    equity held: 4.82% (2009: 4.99%)  157,691   151,549  

 
 Unquoted       
 Shakarganj Foods Products  Limited       
 74,654,596 (2009: 57,554,600) 
    fully paid ordinary shares of rs 10 each  
    equity held: 49.24% (2009: 44.77%)  257,578   147,075     
    415,269   298,624
     
21.2.1  investments in associates include goodwill amounting to rs 85.171 million (2009: rs 38.298 million).    
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21.2.2 the Company’s share of the results of its principal associates, all of which are incorporated in pakistan, and 
its share of the assets (including goodwill) and liabilities are as follow:    
 

      
 Name Percentage
  interest Assets Liabilities Revenues  Profit/(loss) 
  held
 2010     
      
 Crescent steel and Allied      
    products Limited 4.82%  235,931   87,515   142,110   17,699 
 shakarganj Foods products Limited 49.24%  646,749   462,722   1,400,131   (60,515)
      
    882,680   550,237   1,542,241   (42,816)
      
      
 Name Percentage
  interest Assets Liabilities Revenues  Profit/(loss) 
  held
 
 2009     
      
 Crescent steel and Allied      
 products Limited 4.99%  188,617   49,689   166,370   2,750 
 shakarganj Foods products Limited 44.77%  602,025   480,631   969,175   (75,745)
      
    790,642   530,320   1,135,545   (72,995)

21.2.3 the Company’s investment in Crescent steel and Allied products Limited is less than 20% but it is considered to 
be associate as per the requirements of iAs - 28 ‘investments in Associates’ because the Company has significant 
influence over its financial and operating policies.

 
21.2.4 the above figures of Crescent steel and Allied products Limited are based on audited consolidated financial 

statements as at June 30, 2010.
  2010 2009
  (Rupees in thousand)
   restated
21.3 Available for sale   
    
 subsidiary companies               -  at cost  - note 21.3.1  -     243,757 
 Associated companies               -  at cost  - note 21.3.2  3,000   3,000 
 others                                             -  at cost  - note 21.3.3  2,200   2,200 

     5,200   248,957 

 Add: Cumulative fair value gain  - note 21.3.4  413   805 
 Less: Cumulative impairment losses recognized  - note 21.3.5  (5,200)  (166,090)

            Fair value gain   (4,787)  (165,285)

     413   83,672 
    
21.3.1 investments in subsidiary company, safeway Fund Limited was disposed off during the year for a total 

consideration of rs 71.25 million. the company has recognised, in addition to the impairment loss of rs 
160.89 million recognised in previous year, an additional loss of rs 11.616 million on derecognition of these 
shares.     
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  2010 2009
  (Rupees in thousand)
   restated
21.3.2 Associated companies   
    
 Quoted   
    
 Crescent jute Products Limited   
 536,817 (2009: 536,817) fully paid ordinary shares of rs 10 each  -     -   
    
 Crescent Standard Telecommunications Limited   
 300,000 (2009: 300,000) fully paid ordinary shares of rs 10 each  3,000   3,000 
    
     3,000   3,000 
    
21.3.3 Others   
    
 Unquoted   
 Crescent Group Services (Private) Limited   
    
 220,000 (2009: 220,000) fully paid ordinary shares of rs 10 each  2,200   2,200 
    
     2,200   2,200 
    
21.3.4 Cumulative fair value gain   
    
 As at october 1   805   967 
 Fair value loss during the year   (392)  (161,052)

     413   (160,085)
 impairment loss transferred to profit and loss account  - note 21.3.1  -     160,890 

 As at september 30   413   805 
    
21.3.5 Cumulative impairment losses recognized   
    
 As at october 1   166,090   5,200 
 recognized during the year  - note 21.3.1  -     160,890 
 Adjusted on derecognition   (160,890)  -   

 As at september 30   5,200   166,090 
    
21.3.6 investments with face value of rs 640 million (2009: rs 25.550 million) and market value of rs 676 million 

(2009: rs 69.470 million) are pledged as security against long term running finances and short term 
borrowings as referred to in note 7.4 and note 12 respectively.
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  2010 2009
  (Rupees in thousand)
    
22. LONG TERM LOANS, ADVANCES, DEPOSITS 
    AND PREPAYMENTS   
    
 Loans - considered good to:   
 Associate - shakarganj Food products Limited   -     17,399 
 others - sui Northern Gas pipelines Limited - note 22.1  2,898   3,312 

     2,898   20,711 
 Less:  Current portion shown under short term advances - note 28  414   414 

     2,484   20,297 
 Advance to Creek Marina (private) Limited - note 22.2  38,487   38,487 
 security deposits   9,136   40,664 
 others   -     336 

     50,107   99,784 
    
22.1 this represents an un-secured loan given to sNGpL for development of infrastructure for supply of gas to 

the principal facility. Mark up is charged at the rate of 1.5% per annum. this amount is receivable in 10 equal 
annual installments ending May 2017.   

    
22.2 this represents payment for two apartments in the Creek Marina projects pursuant to a settlement agreement 

entered into by the company and the former Crescent standard investment bank Limited (CsibL) in year 
2006.   

    
22.3 Maximum aggregate amount outstanding during the year in respect of related parties is as follows:

  2010 2009
  (Rupees in thousand)

 shakarganj Food products Limited   189,139   193,608 
 Asian Capital Management Fund Limited    -   10,000 
 safeway Fund Limited   -   27,356 

     189,139   230,964 
    
  2010 2009
  (Rupees in thousand)
   Restated
23. DEFERRED TAxATION   
    
 the deferred tax asset comprises temporary differences relating to:   
 Accelerated tax depreciation   (822,049)  (800,325)
 unused tax losses   815,326   797,686 
 undistributed reserves of associates   6,723   2,639 

     -   - 
    
    
 deferred tax asset on tax losses available for carry forward and those representing minimum tax paid 

available for carry forward u/s 113 of the income tax ordinance, 2001 are recognized to the extent that 
the realization of related tax benefits through future taxable profits is probable. the company has not 
recognized deferred tax assets of rs 2,348.54 million (2009: 1,996.08 million) in respect of tax losses and rs 
76.77 million (2009: 60.36 million) in respect of minimum tax paid and available for carry forward u/s 113 
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of the income tax ordinance, 2001, as sufficient tax profits would not be available to set these off in the 
foreseeable future. Minimum tax paid u/s 113 aggregating to rs 76.77 million would not be available for 
carry forward against future tax liabilities subsequent to years 2011 through 2014. tax losses amounting 
to rs 79.34 million, rs 810.42 million, rs 785.16 million, rs 1,400.73 million, rs 1,266.51 million, rs 735.28 
million  expire in year 2011, 2013, 2014, 2015, 2016 and 2017 respectively.   

    
  2010 2009
  (Rupees in thousand)
    
24. STORES, SPARES AND LOOSE TOOLS   
    
 stores   59,468   88,587 
 spares   35,065   27,408 
 Loose tools   1,323   1,389 

     95,856   117,384 
 Less:    provision for obsolete items     (4,610)  (4,610)

     91,246   112,774 
    
24.1 stores and spares include items which may result in fixed capital expenditure but are not distinguishable.
    
  2010 2009
  (Rupees in thousand)
    
25. STOCk-IN-TRADE   
    
 raw materials   30,903   117,208 
 Work-in-process   25,600   9,155 
 Finished goods   75,486   896,245 

     131,989   1,022,608 
    
25.1 raw materials and finished goods amounting to rs Nil (2009: 1,022.608 million) are pledged with lenders as 

security against long term running finances and short term borrowings as referred to in note 7.5 and note 
12 respectively.   

  2010 2009
  (Rupees in thousand)
    
26. TRADE DEBTS
   
 Considered good:   
  - secured   4,149   4,437 
  - unsecured  - note 26.1  10,345   9,259 

     14,494   13,696 
 Considered doubtful:   2,323   2,059 

     16,817   15,755 
 Less: provision for doubtful debts  - note 26.2  (2,323)  (2,059)

     14,494   13,696 
    
26.1 these include receivable from shakarganj Food products Limited, an associated company amounting to rs 

2.257 million (2009: rs 1.061 million).
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  2010 2009
  (Rupees in thousand)
    
26.2 Provision for doubtful debts   
    
 As at october 1   2,059   -   
 provision during the year   264   2,059 

 As at september 30   2,323   2,059

27. INVESTMENTS   
    
 Available for sale  - note 27.1  143,976   254,136 
 held for trading  - note 27.2  -     6,186 
 held to maturity  - note 27.3  -     -   

    143,976   260,322 
    
27.1 Available for sale   
    
 others                           -  at cost  - note 27.1.1  125,307   263,656 

     125,307   263,656 
    
 Add: Cumulative fair value gain  - note 27.1.3  18,669   22,753 
 Less: Cumulative impairment loss  - note 27.1.4  -     (32,273)

     18,669   (9,520)

     143,976   254,136 
    
    
27.1.1 Others   
    
 Quoted   
    
 Samba Bank Limited   
 Nil (2009: 5,058,126) fully paid ordinary shares of rs 10 each   -     50,988 
    
 Altern Energy Limited   
 12,530,582 (2009: 21,266,582) fully paid ordinary 
    shares of rs 10 each   125,307   212,668 
    
 Innovative Investment Bank Limited - Unquoted   
 51,351 (2009: 51,351) fully paid ordinary shares of rs 10 each  -     -   

     125,307   263,656 
    
27.1.2 investments with a face value of rs 124.66 million (2009: rs 262.601  million) and market value of rs 

143.234 million (2009: rs 253.421 million) are pledged as security against long term running finances and 
short term borrowings as referred to in note 7.4 and note 12 respectively.
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  2010 2009
  (Rupees in thousand)
27.1.3 Cumulative fair value gain   
    
 As at october 1   22,753   113,374 
 Fair value gain/(loss) during the year   5,263   (121,964)
 transferred to profit and loss account on derecognition of shares  (9,347)  (930)

    18,669   (9,520)
 impairment loss recognized during the year   -     32,273 

 As at september 30   18,669   22,753 
    
    
27.1.4 Cumulative impairment losses recognized   
    
 As at october 1   32,273   -   
 Add: impairment loss recognized during the year   -     32,273 
 Less: impairment loss adjusted upon derecognition of investment  (32,273)  -   

 As at september 30   -     32,273 
    
27.2 Held for trading - quoted   
    
 Samba Bank Limited   
    
 Nil (2009: 1,671,987) fully paid ordinary shares of rs 10 each  -     6,186 
    
27.3 Held to maturity   
    
 Musharika investment  - note 27.3.1  17,935   17,935 
    
 Less:  Cumulative impairment losses recognized    (17,935)  (17,935)

    -   - 
    
27.3.1 this represented investment under musharika arrangement with Crescent standard Modaraba on profit 

and loss sharing basis. Consequent to consistent failure of the Musharika to pay profits and in view of the 
rapidly deteriorating financial position of the Musharika, the company assessed its recoverable amount 
at Nil and consequently, full carrying amount of the investment was considered impaired in year 2006.   
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  2010 2009
  (Rupees in thousand)
28. LOANS, ADVANCES, PREPAYMENTS AND 
    OTHER RECEIVABLES   
    
 Advances - considered good   
  - to employees   2,883   2,133 
  - to suppliers and contractors  - note 28.1  31,703   27,256 
  - to sugarcane growers  - note 28.2  4,734   4,415 

    39,320   33,804 
 Advances - considered doubtful:   
  - to suppliers and contractors   -   662 
  - to sugarcane growers   3,911   726 

   3,911   1,388 
 due from related parties - unsecured 
    and considered good  - note 28.3  154,141   5,489 
    
 Current portion of long term loan receivable from    
    sui Northern Gas pipelines Limited  - note 22.1  414   414 
    
 recoverable from government   
  - income tax   5,819   43,432 
  - sales tax   3,381   9,590 

    9,200   53,022 
 interest receivable on deposits   -   281 
 security deposits   
  - considered good   1,418   21,204 
  - considered doubtful   -   960 

    1,418   22,164 
 prepayments   14,319   21,048 
 Margins against bank guarantees   1,470   1,470 
 others:   
  - considered good   6,805   4,197 
  - considered doubtful   -   1,458 

    6,805   5,655 

    230,998   144,735 
    
 Less: provision against doubtful receivables  - note 28.4  (3,911)  (3,806)

    227,087   140,929 
    
28.1 these relate to normal business of the company and are interest free.   
    
28.2 these relate to normal business of the company and carry mark-up ranging from 12.6% to 15.52%.   
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  2010 2009
  (Rupees in thousand)
28.3 Due from related parties   
    
 Considered good   
 Crescent sugar Mills and distillery Limited   563   526 
 Crescent steel and Allied products Limited   1,793   2,045 
 shakarganj Food products Limited   1,785   1,785 
 shakarganj energy (private) Limited   150,000   1,133 

     154,141   5,489 
    
28.4 Provision against doubtful receivables   
    
 As at october 1   3,806   2,563 
 provision during the year   1,778   1,756 
 transferred to capital work in progress   (1,000)  (513)
 receivables written off against provision during the year   (673)  -   
    
 As at september 30   3,911   3,806 
    
29. Cash and bank balances   
    
 At banks on:   
 -  saving accounts  - note 29.1  
  - pak rupees   3,382   8,842 
  - Foreign currency  - note 29.2  532   446 

     3,914   9,288 
 -  Current accounts   29,138   14,421 

     33,052   23,709 
    
 in hand   462   799 
    
    33,514   24,508
 
    
29.1 profit on balances in saving accounts ranges from 0.10% to 5.00% (2009: 0.10% to 5.00%) per annum.   

29.2 Foreign currency accounts include us dollars 5,340 (2009: 5,340) and euros 638 (2009: 644).   
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30. NON CURRENT ASSETS HELD FOR SALE AND DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS   
    
 the non current assets held for sale and the liabilities directly associated with non-current assets classified as 

held for sale under iFrs 5 ‘Non Current Assets held For sale and discontinued operations’ in their respective 
categories are summarized hereunder:   

  2010 2009
  (Rupees in thousand)
 
 (a) Non-current assets classified as held for sale   
    
 satellite facility at dargai shah (sugar division)   - note 30.1   1,192,395   -   
 satellite facility at dargai shah (power division)   - note 30.2   -     149,692 
 investments in associates/subsidiary companies   
    at market value   - note 30.3   210,612   486,030 
 Land - Agriculture (Farms division)   - note 30.4   911,914   -   
 other non-operating assets   - note 30.5   348,919   -   
    
    2,663,840   635,722

 (b) Analysis of the result of discontinued operations   

 Profit/(loss) for the year from discontinued operations   
    
 satellite facility at dargai shah (sugar division)   - note 30.1   (271,766)  -   
 satellite facility at dargai shah (power division)   - note 30.2   144,176   -   
 investments in associates/subsidiary companies   
    at market value   - note 30.3   (115,970)  (94,284)
 Land - Agriculture (Farms division)   - note 30.4   (25,612) -
 sML engineering division   - note 30.6   -     8,533 

     (269,172)  (85,751)
    
 Cash flows from discontinued operations   
    
 satellite facility at dargai shah (sugar division)   - note 30.1   25   -   
 satellite facility at dargai shah (power division)   - note 30.2   150,000   (59,888)
 investments in associates/subsidiary companies   
  at market value   - note 30.3   163,617   11,057 
 Land - Agriculture (Farms division)   - note 30.4   564   -   
 sML engineering division   - note 30.6   -     77,439 

     314,206   28,608 
    
    
 A breakup of the constituents of non current assets held for sale and discontinued operations is given as 

follows:   
    
30.1 Satellite facility at Dargai Shah (Sugar Division)   
    
 the board of directors of the Company in its meeting held on March 4, 2010 resolved to dispose off the 

assets of the satellite facility at dargai shah (4,000 tones per day of crushing capacity), which was approved 
by the members of the Company in the Annual General Meeting held on April 5, 2010.   
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 An active plan to sell these assets was commenced during the year and an asset sales agreement with hunza 
sugar Mills Limited has been signed subsequent to the year end on december 3, 2010. As per the term of 
the agreement the assets have been sold for rs 1,350 million, the Company has received rs 478 million from 
the buyer while rs 872 million have been paid into an escrow account with silk bank (the escrow Agent). 
Company will recover the amount from the escrow Agent upon legal transfer of the property to the buyer 
for which it is perusing the lenders with existing charges on this property for release of such charges.

  2010 2009
  (Rupees in thousand)

 Non-current assets classified as held for sale   
 property, plant and equipment   953,382   -   
 Assets subject to finance lease   237,720   -   
 Capital work in progress   1,293   -   

     1,192,395   -   
    
 Analysis of the result of discontinued operations   
 revenue   653,534   -   
 Cost of sales   (794,772)  -   

 Gross loss   (141,238)  -   
    
 expenses   
 Administrative expenses   (12,207)  -   
 distribution and selling costs   (1,047) 
 other income   981  
 Finance cost   (66,341)  -   
 other charges   (51,914)  -   

     (130,528)  -   
 Loss before tax from discontinued operations   (271,766)  -   
 taxation   -     -   

 Loss for the year from discontinued operations   (271,766)  -   
    

 Analysis of the cash flows of discontinued operations   
 operating cash flows   48,737   -   
 investing cash flows   (14,294)  -   
 Financing cash flows   (34,418)  -   

 total cash flows   25   -  
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30.2 Satellite facility at Dargai Shah (Power Division)   
    
 sML power division was sold to shakarganj energy (private) Limited during the current year at a mutually 

agreed price, based on the valuation of the division’s Non-current assets carried out by an independent 
valuer.   

  2010 2009
  (Rupees in thousand)
 
 Non-current assets classified as held for sale   
    
 intangibles   -     624 
 Capital work in progress   -     149,068 

     -     149,692 
    
 Analysis of the result of discontinued operations   
    
 Gain on sale of non current asset held for sale   144,176   -   
    
 Analysis of the cash flows of discontinued operations   
    
 investing cash flows   150,000   (59,888)
    
30.3 Investments in associates/subsidiary companies 
    at market value   
    
 Non-current assets classified as held for sale   
    
 Safeway Mutual Fund Limited (quoted)   
 16,579,143 (2009: 29,215,143 ) fully paid 
    ordinary shares of rs 10 each   165,020   290,792 
 equity held 30.45% (2009: 53.65%)   
    
 Asian Stocks Fund Limited (quoted)   
 16,245,673 (2009: 37,528,673) fully paid ordinary 
    shares of rs 10 each   144,917   334,770 
 equity held 18.05% (2009: 41.7%)   

     309,937   625,562 

 Add:  Cumulative fair value gain  - note 30.3.1  21,319   -   
 Less: Cumulative impairment losses recognized  - note 30.3.2  (120,644)  (139,532)

 Fair value loss   (99,325)  (139,532)

     210,612   486,030

 
    
 the Company’s investment in Asian stock Fund Limited and safeway Mutual Fund Limited have been 

earmarked for disposal by the management to settle its bridge loan as referred to in note 1.2. during the 
year, the Company has offloaded these partially, pursuant to which it also relinquished control over these 
entities. Consequently these are now being carried at their respective market values.   
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  2010 2009
  (Rupees in thousand)
30.3.1 Cumulative fair value (loss)/gain   
    
 As at october 1   -     23,731 
 Fair value loss during the year   (94,651)  (129,072)

      (94,651)  (105,341)
 impairment loss transferred to profit and loss account  - note 30.3.3  115,970   105,341 

 As at september 30   21,319   -   
    
30.3.2 Cumulative impairment losses recognized   
    
 As at october 1   139,532   34,191 
 impairment losses recognised  - note 30.3.3  115,970   -   
 transferred to profit and loss account    
    on derecognition of shares   (134,858)  105,341 

 As at september 30   120,644   139,532 
    
 Analysis of the profit for the year   
    
 other operating expenses   (115,970)  (105,341)
 other operating income   -     11,057 
 taxation   -     -   

 Profit for the year   (115,970)  (94,284)
    
 Analysis of the cash flows for the year   
    
 investing cash flows   163,617   11,057 
    
30.3.3 investments with a face value of rs 240.665 million (2009: rs 579.855 million) and market value of rs 

167.545 million (2009: rs 434.546 million) are pledged as security against long term running finances and 
short term borrowings as referred to in note 7.4 and note 12 respectively.   

    
30.4 Land - Agriculture (Farms Division)   
    
 the board of directors, in the meeting held on december 24, 2009 decided to dispose off the agricultural 

land of the Farms division in piecemeal. the Company is actively perusing buyers through local dealers 
and their other sources and the board is confident that the Company will be able to dispose off these 
assets during the financial year ending september 30, 2011.   

    
 the land is being carried at its revalued amount with a surplus of rs 1.699 million included in the surplus 

on revaluation of property, plant and equipment in note 6.   
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  2010 2009
  (Rupees in thousand)
 
 Analysis of the result of discontinued operations
   
 Revenue   66,844   -   
 Cost of sales   (92,571)  -   

 Gross loss   (25,727)  -   
    
 Expenses   
 Administrative expenses   (11,166)  -   
 other income  - note 16.5  13,112  
 Finance cost   (1,831)  -   

     115   -   
 Loss before tax from discontinued operations   (25,612)  -   
 taxation   -     -   

 Loss for the year from discontinued operations   (25,612)  -   
    

 Analysis of the cash flows of discontinued operations
   
 operating cash flows   (6,926)  -   
 investing cash flows   18,560   -   
 Financing cash flows   (11,070)  -   
    
 Total cash flows   564   -   
    
    
30.5 Non - current assets held for sale
   
 Non-operative plant and machinery - Azad Jammu & Kashmir   194,787   -   
 sML Jhang - plant and Machinery sugar (KK turbine with generators) 3,182   -   
 6 Kanal land - Faisalabad   40,950   -   
 7 Acre land samundari road Faisalabad   55,800   -   
 52 kanal land - Jhang   54,200   -   

     348,919   -   
    

30.5.1 these assets were committed to be sold by the Company under the terms of the restructuring agreements 
referred to in note 1.2 signed in February 2010. the management of the Company is in advance stages of 
sale of these assets and consequently these have been classified as non-current assets held for sale.
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30.6 SML Engineering Division - Faisalabad   
    
 sML engineering division was sold to Crescent steel and Allied products Limited during the last year at 

a mutually agreed price, based on the valuation of the division’s Non-current assets carried out by an 
independent valuer.   

  2010 2009
  (Rupees in thousand)
 
 Analysis of the profit for the year   
    
 sales - Net of sales tax   -     683 
 profit from sale of division  -     10,809 

     -     11,492 
 Expenses   
 Cost of sales   -    (642)
 Administrative expenses   -     (1,389)
 distribution and selling costs  -     (922)
 Finance cost   -     (6)

     -     (2,959)
 profit before tax from discontinued operations   -     8,533 
 taxation   -     -   

 Profit for the year  -     8,533 
    
 Analysis of the cash flows for the year   
    
 operating cash flows   -     (40,124)
 investing cash flows   -     117,563 

 Net cash inflow   -     77,439
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31.  Sales
(Rupees in thousand)

                         Sugar                           Ethanol                   Building Materials                 Textile                Farms                                Power                      Total  
  2010 2009 2010 2009 2010 2009 2010 2009 2010 2009 2010 2009 2010 2009

Gross sales               
-  Local   5,281,709   2,844,680   120,895   131,670   57,785   28,792   1,431,274   978,036   -   159,201   114,838   148,848   7,006,501   4,291,227 
-  export   -   -   1,004,027   1,202,832   -   -   -   -   -   -   -   -   1,004,027   1,202,832 
-  by-products   4,777   5,388   -   -   -   -   35,586   16,373   -   -   -   -   40,363   21,761 
-  inter-segment   495,998   429,102   -   -   -   -   -   -   -   -   89,021   25,551   -   - 

   5,782,484   3,279,170   1,124,922   1,334,502   57,785   28,792   1,466,860   994,409   -   159,201   203,859   174,399   8,050,891   5,515,820 

Less:  Commission to selling agents   5,561   3,507   262   262   3,370   1,106   5,176   3,847   -   -   -   -   14,369   8,722 
sales tax and special excise duty   247,399   361,670   18,329   19,132   8,448   4,183   -   -   -   -   16,735   20,446   290,911   405,431 

   252,960   365,177   18,591   19,394   11,818   5,289   5,176   3,847   -   -   16,735   20,446   305,280   414,153 

Net sales   5,529,524   2,913,993   1,106,331   1,315,108   45,967   23,503   1,461,684   990,562   -   159,201   187,124   153,953   7,745,611   5,101,667  

31.1 inter-segment sales have been eliminated from total figures.

31.2 Current year’s sales of Farms division have been shown under note 30 - ‘Analysis of results of discontinued operations’ 
as it has been classified as held for sale.

32. COST OF SALES
  

inter-segment   33,155   -   525,686   372,625   15,890   3,783   98,102   70,882   -   -   7,120   7,363   -   - 
raw materials consumed   3,608,360   1,881,091   401,222   529,313   8,286   6,859   1,148,409   753,004   -   17,766   -   -   5,166,277   3,188,033 

   3,641,515   1,881,091   926,908   901,938   24,176   10,642   1,246,511   823,886   -   17,766   7,120   7,363   5,166,277   3,188,033 
salaries, wages and other benefits - note 32.3  148,785   179,295   13,529   16,333   4,174   4,297   69,972   63,036   -   16,300   5,521   5,994   241,981   285,255 
stores and spares consumed   39,860   52,072   2,759   3,725   577   385   16,667   14,539   -   -   1,106   10,780   60,969   81,501 
dyes and chemicals   13,129   12,181   18,474   23,438   7,503   3,205   -   -   -   18,649   3,280   3,750   42,386   61,223 
packing material consumed   27,164   29,098   -   -   -   -   14,850   16,078   -   -   -   -   42,014   45,176 
Fuel and power   154,606   275,311   -   -   813   9   64,345   54,089   -   6,882   74,255   2,041   294,019   338,332 
repairs and maintenance   12,439   13,511   159   652   183   140   825   856   -   17,172   7,717   7,782   21,323   40,113 
insurance   4,427   5,641   1,036   1,258   29   29   1,677   2,929   -   1,517   617   687   7,786   12,061 
Vehicle running and maintenance   3,725   4,877   -   -   38   16   -   -   -   2,658   -   -   3,763   7,551 
traveling and conveyance   629   831   77   98   11   15   914   950   -   -   57   161   1,688   2,055 
printing and stationery   386   474   15   30   -   -   -   -   -   -   6   12   407   516 
rent, rates and taxes   760   703   -   -   -   -   192   213   -   37,259   -   -   952   38,175 
sugarcane research and development - note 32.3  9,004   11,381   -   -   -   -   -   -   -   56,865   -   -   9,004   68,246 
staff training and development   209   616   -   -   -   -   -   -   -   -   -   -   209   616 
depreciation on:               
 - property, plant and equipment   184,215   240,981   46,699   50,595   975   1,024   18,299   20,865   -   8,548   20,815   22,613   271,003   344,626 
 - leased assets   3,270   15,595   -   -   -   -   -   291   -   -   14,124   15,269   17,394   31,155 
Amortization on intangibles   -   -   -   -   -   -   340   340   -   -   36   29   376   369 
provision for store obsolescence   -   1,000   -   -   -   -   -   2,110   -   -   -   -   -   3,110 
other expenses   8,734   9,284   2,637   4,017   34   637   1,244   950   -   -   986   1,096   13,635   15,984 

   4,252,857   2,733,942   1,012,293   1,002,084   38,513   20,399   1,435,836   1,001,132   -   183,616   135,640   77,577   6,195,186   4,564,097 

opening work-in-process   2,826   3,234   -   -   -   -   6,233   6,651   -   -   -   -   9,059   9,885 
Work in progress at the conclusion 
   of trial production run - note 19.2.2  -   1,138   -   -   -   -   -   -   -   -   -   -   -   1,138 
Less: Closing work-in-process   (11,715)  (2,915)  -   -   -   -   (9,527)  (6,233)  -   -   -   -   (21,242)  (9,148)

    (8,889)  1,457   -   -   -   -   (3,294)  418   -   -   -   -   (12,183)  1,875 

Cost of goods produced   4,243,968   2,735,399   1,012,293   1,002,084   38,513   20,399   1,432,542   1,001,550   -   183,616   135,640   77,577   6,183,003   4,565,972 

opening stock of finished goods   846,314   782,611   33,136   77,278   7,003   11,728   9,654   65,575   -   153,862   -   -   896,107   1,091,054 
Finished goods at the conclusion 
   of trial production run                    - note 19.2.2  -   52,531   -   -   -   -   -   -   -   -   -   -   -   52,531 
Less: Closing stock of finished goods   (35,244)  (846,452)  (35,705)  (33,136)  (707)  (7,003)  (3,708)  (9,654)  -   (29,672)  -   -   (75,364)  (925,917)

   811,070   (11,310)  (2,569)  44,142   6,296   4,725   5,946   55,921   -   124,190   -   -   820,743   217,668 

   5,055,038   2,724,089   1,009,724   1,046,226   44,809   25,124   1,438,488   1,057,471   -   307,806   135,640   77,577   7,003,746   4,783,640  

32.1 inter-segment purchases have been eliminated from total figures.

32.2 Current year’s cost of sales of farms division have been shown under note 30 - ‘Analysis of results of 
discontinued operations’.
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32.3 salaries, wages and other benefits and sugarcane research and development include following in respect 
of retirement benefits:   

  2010 2009
  (Rupees in thousand)

 pension fund   2,858   3,741 
 Gratuity fund   955   1,583 
 provident fund   3,100   3,364 

     6,913   8,688 
    
33. Administrative expenses   
    
 salaries, wages and other benefits - note 33.1  102,192   117,259 
 repairs and maintenance   5,542   7,778 
 insurance   2,649   3,151 
 Vehicle running and maintenance   8,067   7,901 
 travelling and conveyance   3,617   6,744 
 printing and stationary   1,849   2,834 
 electricity and gas   2,654   2,241 
 telephone, postage and telegram   4,049   5,497 
 Legal and professional charges - note 33.2  14,026   9,834 
 Consultancy and advisory services   4,734   5,223 
 rent, rates and taxes   2,701   2,305 
 entertainment   2,583   2,911 
 subscriptions   11,880   4,493 
 Advertisements   152   206 
 registered office expenses   726   726 
 provision for doubtful advances   -   4,518 
 provision for doubtful receivables   11,673  
 depreciation on:   
  - property, plant and equipment - note 16.3  16,672   24,654 
  - leased assets   4,363   7,420 
 others   1,053   5,548 

     201,182   221,243 
    
33.1 salaries, wages and other benefits include following   
    in respect of retirement benefits:   
    
 pension fund   3,933   5,370 
 Gratuity fund   1,335   2,114 
 provident fund   1,575   1,270 

     6,843   8,754 
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  2010 2009
  (Rupees in thousand)
33.2 Professional services   
    
 the charges for professional services include the following    
    in respect of auditors’ services for:   
  - statutory audit   1,250   1,000 
  - half yearly review    500   400 
  - Certification charges   100   100 
  - out of pocket expenses   97   88 

      1,947   1,588 
    

34. DISTRIBUTION AND SELLING COSTS   
    
 salaries, wages and other benefits - note 34.1  3,244   3,713 
 Freight and forwarding   78,760   99,008 
 handling and distribution   1,452   1,492 
 Loading and unloading charges   6,322   3,338 
 sales promotion expenses   252   240 
 insurance   2,806   7,246 
 provision for doubtful receivables   264   2,059 
 others   -     14 

     93,100   117,110 
    
34.1 salaries, wages and other benefits include provident fund contribution of rs 0.082 million (2009: rs 0.050 

million) by the company.
  2010 2009
  (Rupees in thousand)
   restated
35. OTHER OPERATING ExPENSES   
    
 Workers Welfare Fund   803   790 
 impairment losses on:   
  - Available for sale investments:   
  classified as long term  - note 21.3.4  -   160,890 
  classified as short term  - note 27.1.4  -   32,273 
  classified as held for disposal   -   - 
 social action program expenses   920   3,180 
 Loss on conversion of investment in subsidiary 
    to associate  - note 35.1  -   352,719 
 unrealized loss on investments held for trading   -   11,286 
 Loss on sale of investments   17,067   - 
 Net loss from livestock   -   1,327 
 Net exchange loss   12,927   23,561 
 donations  - note 35.3  610   950 
 Loss on marked to market valuation of interest rate swap   16,806   - 
 others   4,264   1,207 

     53,397   588,183 
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35.1 Loss on conversion of investment in subsidiary to associate   
    
 it represents loss on deemed disposal of holding in shakarganj Foods products Limited (sFpL). in december 

2008 sFpL raised further capital through right issue and the parent company did not exercise the right. this 
reduced the parent company’s holding in sFpL from 53% to 44.77% and thus converting it from subsidiary 
to associate. the loss represents difference between the carrying amount of investment before conversion 
to associate and cost recognized under equity method on conversion into associate. the computation of 
the loss is as follows:   

  2010 2009
  (Rupees in thousand)
   restated

 Carrying amount of investment before conversion into associate  -     575,546 
 Less:   
 - share of net assets after conversion of subsidiary into associate  -     (196,961)
 - Carrying amount of goodwill on conversion into associate   -     (25,866)

     -     (222,827)

     -     352,719 
    
35.3 None of the directors and their spouses had any interest in any of the donees.   
    
35.4 this includes depreciation on property, plant and equipment of Nil (2009: 8.548 million).

  2010 2009
  (Rupees in thousand)
   restated
36. OTHER OPERATING INCOME   
    
 Income from financial assets   
    
 profit on sale of investments   -   5,902 
 dividend income from:   
 - related parties   6,752   - 
 - others   -   686 
 Gain on marked to market valuation of interest rate swap   -   7,187 
 Liabilities written back   4,633   15,779 
 return on advance to:   
 Associate - shakarganj Food products Limited   -   23,730 
 return on bank deposits   13,080   7,242 

     24,465   60,526 
 Income from non-financial assets   
    
 scrap sales   7,367   8,005 
 profit on sale of property, plant and equipment  - note 16.5  7,304   4,496 
 rental income   1,142   42 
 Amortization of deferred income   3,005   3,487 
 Net income from livestock   1,379   - 
 Gain on initial recognition of interest free loan from directors   13,474   - 
 others   25,029   9,646 

     58,700   25,676 

     83,165   86,202 
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  2010 2009
  (Rupees in thousand)
37. FINANCE COST   
    
 interest and mark-up on:   
 -  Long term finances   - note 37.1   440,789   518,594 
 -  short term borrowings   504,012   678,011 
 -  due to provident fund - related party   542   636 
 -  Finance lease   - note 37.2   16,429   46,997 
 -  overdue payable balances   -   1,500 
 bank charges, commission and excise duty   9,434   8,925 
 others   18,024   5,105 

     989,230   1,259,768 
    
37.1 this includes preference dividend of rs 29.389 million (2009: 29.409 million).   
    
37.2 this includes penalties aggregating to rs 8.271 million (2008: 3.313 million) levied by financial institutions 

due to delayed payments.
  2010 2009
  (Rupees in thousand)
38. TAxATION   
    
 Current   
 -  For the year   53,500   18,835 
 -  prior period   2,360   (1,825)

     55,860   17,010 
    
38.1 in view of the available income tax losses, the provision for current taxation represents tax under ‘Final tax 

regime’ and tax on minimum turnover under section 113 of the income tax ordinance, 2001. Minimum tax 
under section 113 is available for set off for 5 years against normal tax liability arising in future years whereas 
tax under ‘Final tax regime’ is not available for set off against normal tax liabilities arising in future years.   

 For the purposes of current taxation, the tax losses available for carry forward as at september 30, 2010 are 
estimated approximately at rs 9,039.61 million (2009: rs 8,018.04 million).

   
  2010 2009
  % %
38.2 Tax charge reconciliation   
    
 Numerical reconciliation between the average effective    
    tax rate and the applicable tax rate   
    
 Applicable tax rate   35.00   35.00 
    
 tax effect for income under presumptive tax regime   7.65   1.17 
 tax losses for which no deferred tax is recognised   (44.01)  (25.26)
 tax effect of amounts that are not deductible for tax purposes  (5.81)  (12.03)
 impact of tax related to associates   (2.06)  (0.56)
 effect of change in prior year’s tax and others   (0.29)  0.12 

     (44.52)  (36.56)
    
 Average effective tax rate charged to profit and loss account   (9.52)  (1.56)
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  2010 2009

39. (LOSS)/EARNINGS PER SHARE   
    
39.1 Basic (loss)/earnings per share   
    
 Continuing operations   
 Loss for the year from continuing operations Rupees   (610,555,000)  (1,872,070,000)
 Weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue   
    during the year Number  69,523,798   69,523,798 
 Loss per share - basic Rupees  (8.78)  (26.93)
    
 Discontinued operations   
 profit for the year from discontinued operations Rupees   (269,172,000)  (85,751,000)
 Weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue   
    during the year Number  69,523,798   69,523,798 
 earnings/(loss) per share - basic Rupees  (3.87)  (1.23)
    
39.2 Diluted loss per share   
    
 diluted loss per share is calculated by adjusting the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding 

to assume conversion of all dilutive potential ordinary shares. the company has a commitment to convert 
1,000 preference shares into 167 ordinary shares of rs 10 each. For the purposes of computing the diluted 
eps the convertible preference shares are assumed to have been converted into ordinary shares, and the 
profit/(loss) is adjusted to eliminate the preference dividend.

   
  2010 2009

 Continuing operations   
    
 Loss for the year from continuing operations Rupees   (610,555,000)  (1,872,070,000)
 preference dividend on convertible preference shares Rupees   29,409,000   29,409,000 

 Loss used to determine diluted earnings per share Rupees   (581,146,000)  (1,842,661,000)
    
 Weighted average number of ordinary shares in   
     issue during the year Number  69,523,798   69,523,798 
 Assumed conversion of convertible preference 
    shares into ordinary shares Number  5,774,108   5,774,108 
 Weighted average number of ordinary shares    
    for diluted earnings per share Number  75,297,906   75,297,906 
    
 Loss per share - diluted Rupees  (7.72)  (24.47)
    
 the effect of the conversion of the convertible preference shares into ordinary shares is anti-dilutive for 

both the current and the previous year, accordingly the diluted eps is restricted to the basic eps.   

 Discontinued operations   
    
 there are no dilutive instruments in respect of discontinued operations.   
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  2010 2009
  (Rupees in thousand)
   restated
40. CASH USED IN OPERATING ACTIVITIES   
    
 Loss before taxation   (803,280)  (1,927,661)
 Adjustment for:   
 depreciation/amortization of:   
  - property, plant and equipment   329,651   372,476 
  - assets subject to finance lease   29,526   38,575 
  - intangible assets   376   369 
  - deferred income   (3,005)  (3,487)
 Liabilities written back   (4,633)  (15,779)
 profit on sale of property, plant and equipment   (20,416)  (15,305)
 profit on sale of non current assets held for disposal - power division  (144,176)  - 
 impairment of investments classified as available for sale   115,970   298,504 
 Loss on conversion of investment in subsidiary to associate   -   352,719 
 Loss/(gain) on sale of investments in associates   17,067   (5,902)
 unrealized loss on investments held for trading   -   11,286 
 interest from bank deposits   (13,080)  (7,242)
 provision against:   
 - doubtful receivables   264   2,059 
 - store obsolescence   -   3,110 
 - doubtful advances   13,452   4,517 
 provision for employees’ retirement benefits   9,081   12,832 
 dividend income   -   (11,743)
 Net income from livestock   (1,379)  141,384 
 Loss/(gain) on marked to market valuation of interest rate swap  16,806   (7,187)
 share of loss from associates   22,229   59,835 
 Finance cost   989,230   1,259,768 

     1,356,963   2,490,789 

 profit before working capital changes   553,683   563,128 
    
 effect on cash flow due to working capital changes:   
 decrease / (increase) in stores and spares   21,528   (18,073)
 decrease in stock in trade   890,619   249,190 
 Net decrease / (increase) in biological assets   14,246   (17,763)
 (increase) / decrease in trade debts   (1,062)  104,503 
 decrease in loans, advances, prepayments and other receivables  17,699   108,146 
 increase in trade and other payables   168,979   61,951 

     1,112,009   487,954 

     1,665,692   1,051,082
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41. REMUNERATION OF CHIEF ExECUTIVE, DIRECTORS AND ExECUTIVES

41.1  the aggregate amount charged in the financial statements for the year for remuneration, including certain 
benefits,  to the full time working directors and executives of the Company is as follows:

                                   Directors                             Executives

   2010 2009 2010 2009
                                      (Rupees in thousand)                     (Rupees in thousand) 
     
 Managerial remuneration  -     -     32,024   33,721 
 Contribution to provident fund, gratuity    
    and pension funds  -     -     6,235     7,675 
 house rent  -     -     9,100   5,336 
 utilities  -     -     2,711   1,855 
 reimbursable expenses  -     -     1,122   1,012 
 others  -     -     1,800   1,489 

    -     -     52,992   51,088
 
 Number of persons   -     32   25    

   

41.2 these financial statements do not include any charge in respect of remuneration or benefits to the Chief 
executive.

41.3 the Company also provides some of its executives with company maintained cars, travel facilities and club 
membership.

41.4 Aggregate amount charged in the financial statements for the year for fee to 7 directors (2009: 8 directors) 
was rs 130,000 (2009: rs 150,000).

42. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES    
     
 the related parties comprise subsidiaries, associated undertakings, post employment benefit plans, other 

related companies, and key management personnel. the company in the normal course of business carries 
out transactions with various related parties. Amounts due from and due to related parties are shown under 
receivables and payables and remuneration of the key management personnel is disclosed in note 41. other 
significant transactions with related parties are as follows:

  2010 2009
  (Rupees in thousand)
 Relationship with the  Nature of transactions
 company  
    
 i. subsidiaries dividend income  -     11,057 
  receipt against long term advance  -     27,356 
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  2010 2009
  (Rupees in thousand)
 Relationship with the  Nature of transactions
 company  

 ii. Associated undertakings purchase of goods and services  20,338   56,821 
  sale of goods and services  12,448   6,352 
  share of common expenses  10,319   6,961 
  interest Charged on long term advances  -     23,730 
  health insurance expenses  1,758   -   
  dividend income  14,912   -   
  sale of investments  -     20,873 
  sale of fixed assets  -     117,126 
  sale of sML power division to shakarganj   
     energy (private) Limited  300,000   -   
  sale of current assets  -     7,081 
  purchase of shares  171,000   -   
  Funds received from/on behalf of the  
  Associated company  -     3,351 
    
 iii. post employment  expense charged in respect of retirement  
        benefit plans  benefit plans  14,375   15,686 
    
 All transactions with related parties have been carried out on commercial terms and conditions.   

  2010 2009
43. CAPACITY AND  PRODUCTION    
    
 Sugar   
 rated crushing capacity -   
 on the basis of 109 days (2009: 110 days) M. tons  2,016,000   1,858,000 
 Actual cane crushed M. tons  913,272   784,056 

 the low crushing was due to shortage of sugarcane and funds.   
    
 Ethanol   
 on the basis of 200 days (2009: 313 days) working Liters  37,900,000   68,580,000 
 Actual production Liters  22,669,768   33,319,694
 
 the low production of ethanol was due to shortage of raw materials.   
    
 Building Materials   
 on the basis of 116 days (2009: 61 days)  Cubic meter  3,480   1,830 
 Actual production Cubic meter  3,562   1,643
 
 the low production of particle board was due to shortage of raw material.   
    
 Textile   
 Capacity (converted in 20s counts) Kgs  7,557,169   8,398,912 
 Actual production (converted in 20s counts) Kgs  7,320,414   6,732,603
 
 the low production of yarn was due to shortage of raw material and funds.   
    
 Power   
 on the basis of 163 days (2009: 325 days) KWh  61,320,000   54,600,000 
 Actual generation KWh  27,291,550   23,541,000
 
 the low generation was due to shortage of raw material.
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44. BUSINESS SEGMENTS INFORMATION
                 
           (Rupees in thousand)

                             Sugar                             Ethanol                  Building Materials                  Textile                         Farms                              Power                             Elimination                         Total  
   2010 2009 2010 2009 2010 2009 2010 2009 2010 2009 2010 2009 2010 2009 2010 2009

Continuing operations
revenue                  
 - external - note 31  5,033,526   2,484,891   1,106,331   1,315,108   45,967   23,503   1,461,684   990,562   -   159,201   98,103   128,402   -   -   7,745,611   5,101,667 
 - intersegment - note 31  495,998   429,102   -   -   -   -   -   -   -   -   89,021   25,551   (585,019)  (454,653)  -   - 

    5,529,524   2,913,993   1,106,331   1,315,108   45,967   23,503   1,461,684   990,562   -   159,201   187,124   153,953   (585,019)  (454,653)  7,745,611   5,101,667 

Segment expenses                  
Cost of sales -  intersegment   33,155   -   525,686   372,625   15,890   3,783   98,102   70,882   -   -   7,120   7,363   (679,953)  (454,653)  -   - 
             -  external - note 32  5,021,883   2,724,089   484,038   673,601   28,919   21,341   1,340,386   986,589   -   307,806   128,520   70,214   -   -   7,003,746   4,783,640 

    5,055,038   2,724,089   1,009,724   1,046,226   44,809   25,124   1,438,488   1,057,471   -   307,806   135,640   77,577   (679,953)  (454,653)  7,003,746   4,783,640 
Gross profit/(loss)   474,486   189,904   96,607   268,882   1,158   (1,621)  23,196   (66,909)  -   (148,605)  51,484   76,376   94,934   -   741,865   318,027 

- Administrative expenses - note 33  139,324   127,716   27,875   57,639   1,158   1,030   28,110   28,110   -   -   4,716   6,748   -   -   201,182   221,243 
- distribution and selling expenses - note 34  70,662   12,919   16,341   96,903   736   104   2,733   6,501   -   -   2,628   683   -   -   93,100   117,110 

    209,986   140,635   44,216   154,542   1,894   1,134   30,843   34,611   -   -   7,344   7,431   -   -   294,282   338,353 

Segment results   264,500   49,269   52,391   114,340   (736)  (2,755)  (7,647)  (101,520)  -   (148,605)  44,140   68,945   -   -   447,583   (20,326)
                  
other operating expenses                 (53,397)  (588,183)

operating profit                 394,186  (608,509)
Finance costs                 (989,230)  (1,259,768)
interest income                 13,080   7,242 
other operating income                 70,085   78,960 
taxation                 (55,860)  (17,010)
share of income / (loss) from associates-net of tax                (42,816)  (72,985)
                  
(Loss)/profit for the year from continuing operations                (610,555) (1,872,070)
discontinued operations                  
Loss for the year from discontinued operations                (269,172)  (85,751)

(Loss)/profit for the year                  (879,727)  (1,957,821)
                  
 44.1  Inter-segment sales  and purchases                 
 inter-segment sales and purchases have been eliminated from total figures.               
  
 44.2  Basis of inter-segment pricing                 
 All inter-segment transfers are made at cost.                 
                  
 44.3  Segment assets   4,413,411   4,585,283   870,673   584,363   37,294   31,699   47,406   155,710   -     -     670,935   727,889   -     -     6,039,719   6,084,944 
 unallocated assets                 2,229,075   4,088,477
 

                  8,268,794   10,173,421
 

 44.4  Segment liabilities   5,984,669   5,753,028   560,484   553,782   11,801   12,577   650,963   625,772    -     10,239   12,155   -     (19,399)  7,218,156   6,937,915 
 unallocated liabilities                 557,605   1,881,979
 

                  7,775,761   8,819,894
 

 44.5  Capital expenditure   13,072   266,597   -     -     -     -     9,300   3,894   11,947   1,199   11,669   74,066   -     -     45,988   345,756 
 unallocated                 319,116   19,348 
                  365,104   365,104 
 44.6  Depreciation on property, plant 
    and equipment   184,215   240,981   46,699   50,595   975   1,024   18,299   20,865   -     3,196   20,815   22,613   -     -     271,003   339,274 
 unallocated                 58,648   53,372
 

                  329,651   392,646
 

 44.7  Depreciation on leased assets  3,270   15,595   -     -     -     -     -     291   -     -     14,124   15,269   -     -     17,394   31,155 
 unallocated                 12,132   12,298
 

                  29,526   43,453 

 44.8  Amortization on intangible assets  -     -     -     -     -     -     340   340   -     -     36   29   -     -     376   369 
 unallocated                 -     -
   

                  376   369 
 44.11  Secondary reporting format                  
                  
Continuing operations 
                 
segment revenue from external customers 
   by geographical areas is as follows:
                  
export sales - europe   -     -     527,622   561,463   -     -     -     -     -     -     -     -     -     -     527,622   561,463 
export sales - Asia   -     -     476,405   641,369   -     -     -     -     -     -     -     -     -     -     476,405   641,369 
Local sales   5,033,526   2,484,891   102,304   112,276   45,967   23,503   1,461,684   990,562   -     -     98,103   128,402   -     -     6,741,584   3,739,634 

    5,033,526   2,484,891   1,106,331   1,315,108   45,967   23,503   1,461,684   990,562   -     -     98,103   128,402   -     -     7,745,611   4,942,466  

Notes to the FiNANCiAL stAteMeNts
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45. FINANCIAL RISk MANAGEMENT   
    
45.1 Financial risk factors   
    
 the company’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: market risk (including currency risk, fair 

value interest rate risk, cash flow interest rate risk and price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. the company’s 
overall risk management programme focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to 
minimise potential adverse effects on the company’s financial performance. the company uses derivative 
financial instruments to hedge certain risk exposures.   

    
 risk management is carried out by the finance and risk management departments under policies approved 

by the board of directors. these departments evaluate and hedge financial risks in close co-operation 
with the company’s operating units. the board provides principles for overall risk management, as well as 
policies covering specific areas, such as foreign exchange risk, interest rate risk, credit risk, use of derivative 
financial instruments and non-derivative financial instruments, and investment of excess liquidity.   

 (a)  Market risk   
    
 (i) Foreign exchange risk   
    
  Foreign exchange risk is the risk that value of a financial instrument will fluctuate due to changes in 

foreign exchange rates. Foreign exchange risk arises mainly where receivables and payables exist due 
to transactions with foreign buyers and suppliers. the company, where considered necessary, uses 
money market borrowing contracts against receivables exposed to foreign currency risks.   

  the Company exposure to foreign currency risk was as follows:
   
  2010 2009
  USD
  Financial Assets   
  trade debts   -     47,941 
  Cash and bank balances  - note 29.2  5,340   5,340 
     
  Financial Liabilities   
  export refinance - note 12.2  7,734,515   3,743,942 
  derivative liability - note 12.2  1,205,021   370,655 
     
  the following significant exchange rates were 
     applied during the year:   
     
  Rupees per USD   
  Average rate   85.24   80.32 
  reporting date rate   86.20   83.30  
    
  At 30 september 2010, if the rupee had weakened/strengthened by 10% against the us dollar with 

all other variables held constant, post-tax profit for the year would have been rs 76.119 million (2009: 
rs 32.612 million) lower/higher, mainly as a result of foreign exchange gains/losses on translation of 
us dollar-denominated short term borrowings, trade receivables and cash and bank balances.

Notes to the FiNANCiAL stAteMeNts
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 (ii) Price risk   
    
  the company is exposed to equity securities price risk because of investments held by the company 

and classified either as available for sale or at fair value through profit or loss. the company is not 
exposed to commodity price risk. to manage its price risk arising from investments in equity securities, 
the company diversifies its portfolio. diversification of the portfolio is done in accordance with the 
limits set by the company.

  the company’s investments in equity of other entities that are publicly traded are listed on the 
following three stock exchanges, Karachi stock exchange, Lahore stock exchange and islamabad 
stock exchange.

  
  the table below summarises the impact of increases/decreases of the Kse-100 index on the company’s 

post-tax profit for the year and on equity. the analysis is based on the assumption that the Kse-100 
index had increased/decreased by 10% with all other variables held constant and all the company’s 
equity instruments moved according to the historical correlation with the Kse-100 index:

   Impact on post- Impact on other 
   tax profit components of equity 
   2010 2009 2010 2009
   (Rupees in thousand) (Rupees in thousand) 
     
  Karachi stock exchange  -  2,705   3,550  14,332 

  post-tax profit for the year would increase/decrease as a result of gains/losses on equity securities 
classified as at fair value through profit or loss. other components of equity would increase/decrease 
as a result of gains/losses on equity securities classified as available for sale.    

 (iii)  Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk    
     
  As the company has no significant interest-bearing assets, the company’s income is substantially 

independent of changes in market interest rates.

  the company’s interest rate risk arises from both long-term and short term borrowings. borrowings 
issued at variable rates expose the company to cash flow interest rate risk. during 2010 and 2009, the 
company’s borrowings at variable rates were denominated in rupees.

 
  the company analyses its interest rate exposure on a dynamic basis. Various scenarios are simulated 

taking into consideration refinancing, renewal of existing positions, alternative financing and hedging. 
based on these scenarios, the company calculates the impact on profit and loss of a defined interest 
rate shift. the scenarios are run only for liabilities that represent the major interest-bearing positions.

 
  based on the various scenarios, the company manages its cash flow interest rate risk by using cross 

currency interest rate swaps. such interest rate swaps have the economic effect of converting 
borrowings with variable interest rates based on Kibor to Libor. Generally, the company raises long-
term borrowings with variable interest rate based on Kibor and swaps the interest portion with the 
lower rates based on Libor. under the interest rate swaps, the company agrees with other parties to 
exchange, at specified intervals , the difference between interest based on Kibor and based on Libor, 
calculated by reference to the agreed notional amounts.

 
  the Company does not account for any fixed rate financial assets and liabilities at fair value through 

profit or loss. therefore a change in interest rates at the reporting date would not the carrying value 
of any of company’s assets or liabilities.

 
  At 30 september 2010, if interest rates on both short term and long borrowings had been 1% higher/

lower with all other variables held constant, post-tax profit for the year would have been rs 64.139 
million (2009: rs 66.272 million) lower/higher, mainly as a result of higher/lower interest expense on 
Kibor based borrowings.
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 (b) Credit risk
 
  Credit risk arises from cash and cash equivalents, derivative financial instruments and deposits with 

banks and financial institutions, as well as credit exposures to wholesale and other customers, including 
outstanding receivables and committed transactions. For banks and financial institutions, only 
independently rated parties with a strong credit rating are accepted. if customers are independently 
rated, these ratings are used. if there is no independent rating, management assesses the credit 
quality of the customer, taking into account its financial position, past experience and other factors. 
individual risk limits are set based on internal or external ratings in accordance with limits set by the 
board. the utilisation of credit limits is regularly monitored and major sales to customers are settled in 
cash.

 
  the carrying amount of financial assets represents the maximum credit exposure. the maximum 

exposure to credit risk at the balance sheet date was:    
  2010 2009
  (Rupees in thousand)

  Long term loan and deposits    50,107   99,784 
  trade debts   14,494   13,696 
  Loans, advances and other receivables    203,568   66,859 
  Cash and bank balances   33,052   23,709 

     301,221   204,048 
      
  the company does not hold any collateral or any other credit enhancement instruments in relation to 

trade receivables.     

  the credit quality of Company’s bank balances can be assessed with reference to external credit 
ratings as follows:   
  

    Rating    Rating   
   Short term  Long term  Agency  2010   2009
     
 Askari bank Limited A1+ AA pACrA  21,370   8,105 
 Al-baraka islamic bank A-1 A JCr-Vis  1   53 
 Allied bank Limited A1+ AA pACrA  24   22 
 Atlas bank Limited A2 A - pACrA -  100 
 bank Alfalah Limited A1+ AA pACrA  274   203 
 bankislami pakistan Limited A1 A pACrA -  8,451 
 the bank of punjab A1+ AA - pACrA  17   264 
 barclays bank pLC p-1 Aa3 Moody’s -  10 
 samba bank Limited A-1 A JCr-Vis  -     -   
 Faysal bank Limited A-1+ AA pACrA  458   609 
 habib bank Limited A-1+ AA+ JCr-Vis  16   48 
 KAsb bank Limited A2 A - pACrA  6   7 
 MCb bank Limited A1+ AA+ pACrA  6,482   4,940 
 Meezan bank Limited A-1 AA- JCr-Vis -  268 
 Nib bank Limited A1+ AA- pACrA  6  
 National bank of pakistan A-1+ AAA JCr-Vis  509   98 
 silkbank Limited A-2 A - JCr-Vis  76   58 
 standard Chartered bank Limited A1+ AAA pACrA  112   95 
 united bank Limited A-1+ AA+ JCr-Vis  3,701   378 

      33,052   23,709   
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 (c)  Liquidity risk    
     
  prudent liquidity risk management implies maintaining sufficient cash and marketable securities, 

the availability of funding through an adequate amount of committed credit facilities and the ability 
to close out market positions. due to the dynamic nature of the company’s businesses, the finance 
department maintains flexibility in funding by maintaining availability under committed credit lines.  

  Management monitors the forecasts of the company’s undrawn borrowing facilities (note 12) and cash 
and cash equivalents (note 29) on the basis of expected cash flow. in addition, the company’s liquidity 
management policy involves projecting cash flows in each quarter and considering the level of liquid 
assets necessary to meet its liabilities; monitoring balance sheet liquidity ratios against internal and 
external regulatory requirements; and maintaining debt financing plans.    

  the table below analyses the company’s financial liabilities and net-settled derivative financial 
liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based on the remaining period at the balance sheet to the 
contractual maturity date. the amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual undiscounted cash 
flows.

  
     (Rupees in thousand)

  Less than Between 1 Between 2 Over
  1 year and 2 years and 5 years 5 years

 At September 30, 2010    
     
 Fixed rate long term debt  345,755   -     -     -   
 Floating rate long term debt  1,598,141   281,126   730,800   126,000 
 Finance lease liabilities - Gross  193,300   902   57,675   -   
 Variable rate short term borrowings  2,845,639   -     -     -   
 derivative financial instruments  84,887   14,981   10,466   -   
 trade and other payables  1,117,523   -     -     -   
 Accrued finance cost  812,863   -     -     -   

    6,998,108   297,009   798,941   126,000   
     
     (Rupees in thousand)

  Less than Between 1 Between 2 Over
  1 year and 2 years and 5 years 5 years
     
 At September 30,2009
    
 Fixed rate long term debt  345,755   -     -     -   
 Floating rate long term debt  1,220,535   460,368   823,078   -   
 Finance lease liabilities - gross  226,381   101,255   72,415   -   
 Variable rate short term borrowings  4,054,535   -     -     -   
 derivative financial instruments  75,140   19,494   15,699   -   
 trade and other payables  936,374  -     -     -   
 Accrued finance cost  610,572   -     -     -   

   7,469,292   581,117   911,192   -  
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45.2 Fair value estimation    
     
 the carrying value of financial assets and liabilities reflected in the financial statements approximate their 

fair values.
 
 the fair value of financial instruments traded in active markets is based on quoted market prices at the 

balance sheet date. the quoted market price used for financial assets held by the company are the current 

 the financial instruments that are not traded in active market are carried at cost and are tested for impairment 
according to iAs 39.

 
 the carrying value less impairment provision of trade receivables are assumed to approximate their fair 

values.
 
46. CAPITAL RISk MANAGEMENT

 the board’s policy is to maintain an efficient capital base so as to maintain investor, creditor and market 
confidence and to sustain the future development of its business. the board of directors monitors the return 
on capital employed, which the Company defines as operating income divided by total capital employed. 
the board of directors also monitors the level of dividends to ordinary shareholders.

 
 the company’s objectives when managing capital are:
 
 (i)    to safeguard the entity’s ability to continue as a going concern, so that it can continue to provide 

returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders, and
 
 (ii)    to provide an adequate return to shareholders.
 
 the company manages the capital structure in the context of economic conditions and the risk characteristics 

of the underlying assets. in order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the company may, for example, 
adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders, issue new shares, or sell assets to reduce debt.

 
 For working capital requirements and capital expenditure, the company primarily relies substantially on 

short term borrowings.
 
47. DATE OF AUTHORIzATION OF ISSUE
 
 these financial statements were authorized for issue on January 6, 2011 by the board of directors of the 

company.
 
48. EVENTS AFTER THE BALANCE SHEET DATE
 
48.1 As mentioned in note 8.1, the current maturity of the liability against assets subject to finance lease includes 

rs148.5 million payable to Meezan bank. the bank waived rs 4.4 million from this amount and the Company 
settled its liability in full in december 2010 for an amount of rs 144.1 million.

48.2  As mentioned in note 30.1, an asset sales agreement with hunza sugar Mills Limited regarding satellite 
facility at dargai shah (sugar division) has been signed on december 3, 2010. As per the terms of the 
agreement the assets have been transferred to buyer at rs 1,350 million.

Notes to the FiNANCiAL stAteMeNts
For the year ended september 30, 2010



89

 Chief Executive Chairman

49. CORRESPONDING FIGURES
 
 Corresponding figures have been re-arranged and re-classified, wherever necessary, for the purposes of 

comparison and better presentation as per reporting framework. significant re-arrangements made are as 
follows:

  (Rupees in thousand)

 impairment losses on available for sale investments classified 
    as held for disposal from other operating expenses’ to 
    ‘profit and loss for the year from discontinued operations’.    105,341 
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 No. of  Shareholding  Total shares
 Shareholders From  To held

 296 1 100 11,842
 329 101 500 101,657
 261 501 1,000 198,154
 478 1,001 5,000 1,056,392
 88 5,001 10,000 608,182
 56 10,001 15,000 686,896
 34 15,001 20,000 593,626
 14 20,001 25,000 313,735
 11 25,001 30,000 302,330
 8 30,001 35,000 261,981
 6 35,001 40,000 223,796
 8 40,001 45,000 339,576
 3 45,001 50,000 142,896
 3 50,001 55,000 156,866
 7 55,001 60,000 413,899
 3 60,001 65,000 191,328
 3 65,001 70,000 198,362
 2 70,001 75,000 142,791
 2 75,001 80,000 151,235
 2 80,001 85,000 163,528
 3 90,001 95,000 274,168
 5 95,001 100,000 496,984
 2 100,001 105,000 201,745
 1 105,001 110,000 108,866
 3 110,001 115,000 335,776
 3 115,001 120,000 352,660
 6 135,001 140,000 817,154
 2 140,001 145,000 284,947
 3 145,001 150,000 440,123
 1 150,001 155,000 152,090
 2 155,001 160,000 316,747
 1 170,001 175,000 174,850
 3 175,001 180,000 531,839
 1 180,001 185,000 182,684
 1 185,001 190,000 185,275
 2 190,001 195,000 383,400
 1 195,001 200,000 200,000
 1 200,001 205,000 200,440

the Companies ordinance 1984   Form - 34
(section 236(1) and 464)   

pAtterN oF shArehoLdiNG    
1.  incorporation Number  
2.  Name of the Company         Shakarganj Mills Limited 
3.  pattern of holding of the shares held by the shareholders as at :           september 30, 2010



91

 2 220,001 225,000 447,566
 1 275,001 280,000 276,999
 1 285,001 290,000 289,760
 1 410,001 415,000 412,563
 1 460,001 465,000 463,600
 1 505,001 510,000 508,200
 1 510,001 515,000 513,240
 1 525,001 530,000 526,695
 1 535,001 540,000 539,696
 1 545,001 550,000 546,304
 1 630,001 635,000 630,500
 1 650,001 655,000 654,703
 1 670,001 675,000 671,275
 1 680,001 685,000 682,938
 1 765,001 770,000 765,150
 1 1,025,001 1,030,000 1,027,000
 1 1,065,001 1,070,000 1,066,138
 1 1,170,001 1,175,000 1,170,210
 1 1,225,001 1,230,000 1,228,800
 1 1,505,001 1,510,000 1,505,913
 1 1,535,001 1,540,000 1,539,480
 1 2,105,001 2,110,000 2,108,319
 1 2,115,001 2,120,000 2,118,785
 1 2,845,001 2,850,000 2,847,428
 1 2,865,001 2,870,000 2,865,830
 1 4,350,001 4,355,000 4,351,178
 1 5,425,001 5,430,000 5,427,488
 1 7,190,001 7,195,000 7,194,553
 1 15,240,001 15,245,000 15,244,665

 1,685   69,523,796

 No. of  Shareholding  Total shares
 Shareholders From To held
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                        Categories of Shareholder Physical CDC Total %age

5.1 Directors, Chief Executive Officer, Their Spouse and Childern    
Chief Executive    
 Mr. Ahsan M. saleem  -     527,545   527,545   0.76 
Directors    
 Mr. Ali A. saleem  -     289,760   289,760   0.42 
 Mr. Khalid bashir  -     4,230   4,230   0.01 
 Mr. Mazhar Karim  3,588   546,304   549,892   0.79 
 Mr. Muhammad Anwar  -     67,222   67,222   0.10 
 Mr. Muhammad Arshad  -     143,136   143,136   0.21 
Director’s Spouse and Their Childern     -   
 Mrs. Abida Mazhar  13,083   -     13,083   0.02 
 Mrs. shahnaz A. saleem   146,174   146,174   0.21 

   16,671   1,724,371   1,741,042   2.50
 

5.2 -  Associated Companies, Undertakings & Related Parties    
 Asian stock Fund Limited  -     2,108,319   2,108,319   3.03 
 Crescent Jute products Limited  200   200,440   200,640   0.29 
 Crescent steel And Allied products Limited  -     15,244,665   15,244,665   21.93 
 Crescent sugar Mills & distillery Limited  -     2,865,830   2,865,830   4.12 
 safeway Mutual Fund Limited  -     2,118,785   2,118,785   3.05 
 the Cresent textile Mills Limited  -     5,427,488   5,427,488   7.81 
 trustees - sML Gratuity Fund  -     59,431   59,431   0.09 
 trustees - sML pension Fund  -     157,441   157,441   0.23 
 trustees - sML provident Fund  -     765,150   765,150   1.10
 

   200   28,947,549   28,947,749   41.64 

5.3 - NIT & ICP (Name wise Detail)    
 National bank of pakistan-trustee Wing  71   -     71   0.00 
 National investment trust Limited  -     185,275   185,275   0.27 
 Nbp - trustee department Ni(u)t Fund  -     7,194,553   7,194,553   10.35 

   71   7,379,828   7,379,899   10.61 
    
5.4 -  Banks, DFI’s, NBFI’s  102,741   7,480,775   7,583,516   10.91 

    
5.5 -  Insurance Companies  8   -     8   0.00 

    
5.6 -  Modarabas & Mutual Funds  453   575,337   575,790   0.83 

    
5.7 -  Other Companies  543,938   3,742,441   4,286,379   6.17 

    
5.8 -  Non Resident    
 state street bank & trust Co.  216   -     216   0.00 

   216   -     216   0.00 

5.9 -  General Public     
 A. Local  959,987   18,049,210   19,009,197   27.34
 

   959,987   18,049,210   19,009,197   27.34 

   1,624,285  67,899.511   69,523,796   100.00 

 Shareholders More Than 10.00%  
 Crescent steel And Allied products Limited  15,244,665   21.93 
 Nbp - trustee department Ni(u)t Fund  7,194,553   10.35  
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NotiCe is hereby given that 43rd Annual General Meeting the Company will be held on Monday, January 31, 2011 
at 12.00 Noon  Qasr-e-Noor, 9 e 2 Main boulevard, Gulberg-iii, Lahore to transact the following business:

ORDINARY BUSINESS

1. to receive, consider and adopt the Audited Accounts of the Company for the year ended september 30, 
2010 together with the directors’ and Auditors’ reports thereon.

2. to appoint auditors for the year ending september 30, 2011 and fix their remuneration.

SPECIAL BUSINESS

3. to consider, approve and ratify the disposal of the Company’s additional land measuring 11 acres 2 kanals 
and 13 marlas. 

4. to sanction the holding of office of profit under the Company by the working director.

 bY order oF the boArd

Lahore: January 06, 2010

 Company secretary

NOTES:

1. the register of members of the Company will remain closed and no transfer of shares will be accepted for 
registration from January 25, 2011 to January 31, 2011 (both days inclusive). transfers received in order at 
the Company’s share registrar, M/s Corptec Associates (private) Limited 7/3 G, Mushtaq Ahmad Gurmani 
road, Gulberg ii, Lahore by the close of business on January 24, 2011 will be treated in time for the purpose 
of attending the annual general meeting.

2. A member entitled to attend and vote at this meeting may appoint any other member as his/her proxy to 
attend and vote instead of him/her. the instrument appointing a proxy and the power of attorney or other 
authority under which it is signed or a notarially attested copy of the power of attorney must be deposited 
at the Company’s share registrar, M/s Corptec Associates (private) Limited 7/3 G, Mushtaq Ahmad Gurmani 
road, Gulberg ii, Lahore at least 48 hours before the time of the meeting.

3. Members who have deposited their shares into Central depository Company of pakistan Limited (“CdC”) 
will further have to follow the under mentioned guidelines as laid down by the securities and exchange 
Commission of pakistan.

 A. For Attending the Meeting

 a. in case of individuals, the account holder and/or sub-account holder whose registration details are 
uploaded as per the CdC regulations, shall authenticate his/her identity by showing his/her original 
CNiC or original passport at the time of attending the Meeting.

 b. in case of corporate entity, the board’s resolution/power of attorney with specimen signature of the 
nominee shall be produced (unless it has been provided earlier) at the time of the Meeting.

 B. For Appointing Proxies

 a. in case of individuals, the account holder and/or sub-account holder whose registration details are 
uploaded as per the CdC regulations, shall submit the proxy form as per above requirements.

NotiCe oF ANNuAL GeNerAL MeetiNG
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 b. the proxy form shall be witnessed by two persons, whose names, addresses and CNiC numbers shall 
be mentioned on the form.

 c. Attested copies of the CNiC or the passport of beneficial owners and the proxy shall be furnished with 
the proxy form.

 d. the proxy shall produce his original CNiC or original passport at the time of the Meeting.

 e. in case of corporate entity, the board’s resolution/power of attorney with specimen signature shall be 
furnished (unless it has been provided earlier) along with proxy form to the Company.

STATEMENT UNDER SECTION 160(1) (b) OF THE COMPANIES ORDINANCE, 1984

this statement sets out the material facts pertaining to the special business to be transacted at the Annual General 
Meeting of the Company, scheduled to be held on January 31, 2011.

Agenda Item # 3 Disposal of Company’s Land

the shareholders of the Company in their meeting held on April 05, 2010 have approved the disposal of one of 
the Company’s sugar production facilities located at dargai shah, district Jhang comprising of land measuring 
83 acres and 2 kanals together with all buildings and structures standing thereon and the plant and machinery, 
equipment and all other assets installed therein as part of the debt re-profiling plan agreed upon with the lenders 
of the Company. it was later transpired that the land measuring 11 acres, 2 kanals and 13 marlas was also part of 
the total land of dargai shah sugar Facility, however, the same could not at the time of passing of the aforesaid 
resolution by the shareholders was included in the total land to be disposed off as part of the subject sale of assets. 
the sale of assets negotiated with the prospective buyers, therefore, included the total land of 94 acres, 4 kanals 
and 13 marlas. the board of directors had already approved the disposal of the aforesaid additional land subject, 
however, to the approval of shareholders.

the following information is provided in respect of the sale of land: 

 Acres kanals Marla

Land already approved by shareholders 83 2 0
Additional Land                                                    11 2 13
        
total                                                                       94 4 13
  
i).    the area of land (including additional land) to be sold:  94 Acres, 4 kanals and 13 marlas;
ii)    Location: dargai shah, district Jhang;
iii)   total cost of land rs: 24,628,732
iv)   revalued amount of land as on February 10, 2010: rs.75,200,000
v)    book Value rs.24,628,732
vi)   Approximate current market price/fair value rs. 75,200,000
vii)  price at which the land will be sold: rs. 163,496,000
viii)  the proposed manner of disposal: this is part of sale of dargai shah assets being sold by the Company in 

terms of the shareholders’ resolution dated April 05, 2010. 
ix).  reason for the disposal of assets: the proposed land is a part of dargai shah sugar facility which was 

approved for sale by the shareholders in the annual general meeting held on April 05, 2010. these assets 
were approved for sale as part debt re-profiling with the lenders of the Company with the objective to 
reduce the Company’s debt and consequent reduction in financial charges. 

x).  benefits expected to accrue to the shareholders: the proceeds from the disposal of the land and other 
assets of dargai shah sugar facility will be utilized for reduction of the Company’s borrowings and working 
capital of the Company. Consequently, the borrowing cost will reduce substantially. 
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the directors have no direct or indirect interest in the above said special business 

the following resolution is proposed to be passed as an ordinary resolution with or without modification, addition 
or deletion: 

 “Resolved 

 that consent of the general meeting be and is hereby accorded to the disposal of the Company’s additional 
land measuring 11 acres 2 kanals and 13 marlas forming part of the total land of 94 acres, 4 kanals and 13 
marlas to be sold as part of the disposal of dargai shah assets approved by the shareholders in the annual 
general meeting held on April 05, 2010.

 Resolved Further 

 that each of Mr. Ahsan M. saleem, Chief executive officer, and Mr. Anjum M. saleem, Managing director, 
of the Company, be and are hereby singly authorized and empowered on behalf of the Company to do 
all acts, deeds and things and take all necessary steps including signing of the documents, deeds and 
papers, agreements and all other documents as may be necessary in order to give effect to, implement and 
complete the sale of the land as aforesaid (as part of the disposal of dargai shah assets approved by the 
shareholders in the annual general meeting held on April 05, 2010) and all matters connected, necessary 
and incidental thereto.”

Agenda Item # 4 Holding of Office of Profit by working Director

the directors (other than Chief executive) need sanction of the company in general meeting to hold any office of 
profit under the company on the terms and conditions determined by the board of directors. For this purpose, it is 
proposed that the following resolution be considered and passed as an ordinary resolution:

 “Resolved 

 that sanction be and is hereby granted for holding and continuing to hold an office of profit under the 
company by Mr. Ali Altaf saleem, director on the terms and conditions determined by the board of directors 
of the Company.”

No other director is interested, in any way, directly or indirectly in passing the aforesaid resolution.
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i/We________________________________________ s/o, d/o, W/o ____________________________________ of

_____________________________________________________________________ (full address) a member(s) of 

shakarganj Mills Limited and holder of ________________________________________ shares as per registered 

Folio No. ____________ and/or CdC participant i.d. No. _______________ and sub Account No. ______________

do hereby appoint _____________________________ of ___________________________________ (full address)

or failing him/her ____________________________________ of ________________________________________

(full address) as my/our proxy to attend, speak and vote for me/us and on my/our behalf at the Annual General 
Meeting of shakarganj Mills Limited scheduled to be held on Monday the January 31, 2011 at 12:00 noon at Qasr-
e-Noor, 9 e 2 Main boulevard, Gulberg-iii. Lahore and at any adjournment thereof.

As witness my / our hand this __________________________ day of __________________________ 2011.

Member ____________________________

Witness ____________________________

Address ____________________________

dated ______________________________

Notes:

1. A member entitled to attend and vote at a General Meeting is entitled to appoint a proxy
2.  the instrument appointing a proxy, together with the power of Attorney, if any, under which it is signed or a 

notarially certified copy thereof, should be deposited at the registered office, not less than 48 hours before 
the time of holding the Meeting.

3.  CdC account holders will further have to follow the under mentioned guidelines as laid down in circular 
No.1 dated January 26, 2000 of the securities & exchange Commission of pakistan for appointing proxies.

4.  in case of individuals, the account holder or sub-account holder and/or the person whose securities are 
in group account and their registration details are uploaded as per the regulations, shall submit the proxy 
form as per the above requirement.

5.  the proxy form shall be witnessed by two persons whose names, addresses and NiC numbers shall be 
mentioned on the form.

6.  Attested copies of NiC or the passport of the beneficial owners and the proxy shall be furnished with the 
proxy form.

7.  the proxy shall produce his original NiC or original passport at the time of the meeting.
8.  in case of a corporate entity, the board of directors’ resolution/power of attorney with specimen signatures 

of the proxy holdershall be submitted (unless it has been provided earlier) alongwith proxy form to the 
Company.

ForM oF proXY

the signature should agree
with the specimen registered 

with the Company

signature on
Five-rupees

revenue stamp
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